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Management Discussion and Analysis
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the current reporting year, turnover of the Group attained HK$447.2
million, represented an increase of 4.1% as compared to the HK$429.5
million of 2012. The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 was a profit of HK$443.1 million (2012: loss of HK$149.0 million)
which was mainly attributable to gross profit of HK$115.3 million (2012:
HK$110.8 million); administrative expenses of HK$223.5 million (2012:
HK$151.4 million); finance costs of HK$32.3 million (2012: HK$18.6 million);
impairment losses recognised in respect of available-for-sale investment
of HK$32.2 million (2012: Nil); impairment losses recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment of HK$50.4 million (2012: HK$44.2
million) in respect of its hotel properties in the PRC based on valuation
reports conducted by independent professional valuers; loss on disposals
of subsidiaries of HK$20.1 million (2012: gain of HK$2.2 million); decrease
in fair value of investment properties of HK$30.1 million (2012: increase of
HK$10.0 million); income tax expense of HK$59.1 million (2012: HK$1.0
million) and the gain on deemed disposal of Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co.,
Ltd. ("Rosedale Beijing”) of HK$781.8 million (2012: HK$NiIl). Increase in
administrative costs was attributable mainly to the expenses in connection
with the grand opening and running expenses given rise from Rosedale Hotel
Kowloon, coupled with the repair and maintenance expenses incurred in the

Group's hotel properties in the PRC during the reporting year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEGMENT RESULTS
Hotel Operations

The hotel operations of the Group comprise the operation of the four
“Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels, the Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang
and the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel. Turnover increased by 4.1% to
HK$447.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$429.5
million) with the contribution from the full year results of Rosedale Hotel
Kowloon opened in July 2012. Segment profit for the reporting year was
HK$624.4 million (2012: loss of HK$137.9 million) after taking into account
the gain on deemed disposal of Rosedale Beijing of HK$781.8 million. Based
on the valuation conducted by an independent professional valuer and
the unsatisfied results of the hotel operation and the budget hotels in the
PRC, the directors determined that impairment of HK$50.4 million (2012:
HK$44.2 million) has to be recognised in respect of certain of its hotel

properties and leasehold improvement in the PRC.

Securities Trading

Profit from securities trading for the year ended 31 December 2013 was

HK$0.2 million (2012: HK$1.8 million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 29 April 2013, Enjoy Media Holdings Limited (the “Vendor"), a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with three independent third
parties (collectively referred to as the “Purchasers”) for the disposal of the
entire issued share capital in Square Inn Hotel Management Limited by the
Vendor to the Purchasers at a consideration of HK$52,000,000. Completion

took place immediately upon signing of the agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 31 May 2013, DS Eastin Limited ("DS Eastin”), a subsidiary of the
Company, China Private Ventures Ltd. (the “Investor”), an independent
third party, Rosedale Beijing, a wholly owned subsidiary of DS Eastin,
and the Company entered into a conditional capital increase agreement
(the "Capital Increase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Investor has
conditionally agreed to procure its subsidiary (the “PRC Investor”) to make
a capital contribution of US$68.8 million (representing approximately
HK$533.9 million) in cash to the registered capital of Rosedale Beijing, and
the Company, as the guarantor, has agreed to guarantee the performance
of the obligations of DS Eastin under the Capital Increase Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder. The PRC investor shall pay a
compensation amount estimated at approximately RMB530.2 million to
DS Eastin in consideration of waving its pre-emption rights to make the
capital contribution. The Capital Increase Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 13 August 2013. The
Capital Increase Agreement was completed in November 2013. Following
completion, the Company's equity interest in Rosedale Beijing was reduced
from approximately 88.7% to approximately 17.7% and Rosedale Beijing

ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 5 November 2013, Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited (“Eagle Spirit”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Shaw Holdings Inc. (“Shaw")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Eagle Spirit
has conditionally agreed to sell, and Shaw has conditionally agreed to
purchase, 60% of the issued share capital of and shareholder’s loan to More
Star Limited (“More Star”) for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$789.2 million. The sole asset of More Star is its investment in Fortress
State International Limited (“Fortress State”) which is principally engaged
in the business of property holding and its principal asset is the ownership
of Rosedale Hotel Kowloon (the “Hotel”). Based on the consideration of
HK$789.2 million (assuming no adjustment is required) and the associated
direct cost of the disposal of approximately HK$10.0 million, the net proceeds
from the disposal are estimated to be approximately HK$779.2 million.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited
("Rosedale Kowloon”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
shall enter into a master lease with Fortress State upon completion of the
agreement. Under the master lease, Rosedale Kowloon shall lease the Hotel
for hotel operation from Fortress State for a term of six (6) years commencing
from the first date of the month immediately after completion of the
disposal. The rent payable by Rosedale Kowloon to the Fortress State shall
comprise monthly base rent and turnover rent. The disposal was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on 5

March 2014 and the agreement was completed on 14 March 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's total borrowings were as

follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

All borrowings bear floating interest rates. During the current reporting
period, the Group repaid borrowings of HK$22.5 million and obtained new
bank borrowings of HK$195.0 million at an interest rate of HIBOR plus
2.5% per annum to finance the normal operations of the Group. Bank
deposits of approximately HK$311.1 million and properties with carrying
value of approximately HK$810.1 million were pledged as securities for bank

borrowings as at 31 December 2013.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013, expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 55.5%
(2012: 54.3%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2013, certain assets of the Group at net book value of
HK$1,121.2 million (2012: HK$1,440.4 million) were pledged to banks and

financial institutions for credit facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2013 (2012: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group has not entered into any hedging arrangements.
However, the Company will continue to monitor closely its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and to arrange for hedging facilities when

necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had 870 employees of which 531
employees were stationed in the PRC. Competitive remuneration packages
are structured to commensurate with the responsibilities, qualifications,
experience and performance of individual employee. The Group also provides
training programs, provident fund scheme and medical insurance for its

employees.

PROSPECTS

Global activity strengthened during the second half of 2013. International
Monetary Fund expected that activity shall improve further in 2014-15,
largely on account of recovery in the advanced economies. Global growth
is now projected to be slightly higher in 2014, at around 3.7%, rising to
3.9% in 2015. But following the US Federal Reserve Board's tapering its
quantitative easing measures beginning from January 2014, downward
revisions to growth forecasts in some economies highlight continued
fragilities, and downside risks remain. On the other hand, growth in China
rebounded strongly in the second half of 2013, due largely to an acceleration
in investment and is expected to moderate slightly to around 7.5% in 2014—
15.

Following the completion of the disposal and lease back of Rosedale Hotel
Kowloon in March 2014, there remains five hotels under the management
of the Group and of which two hotels located in Hong Kong are leased-and-
operated hotels. The Group shall explore further this leased-and-operated
hotel and franchising business to supplement its traditional owner-operated
hotel business. Nevertheless, the Group shall from time to time revisit its
business strategy and composition of its hotel portfolio to cope with the
market changes and to explore further income streams so as to maximise the

wealth of its shareholders.
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Directors Profile
= Rl

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as a Director of the Company in October 2003. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the University of London with a Bachelor of Arts degree and has over 36 years
of experience in real estate development, property investment and corporate
finance. He has worked in key executive positions in various leading property
development companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is the chairman and an
executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited, the shares of which are
listed in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of
International Entertainment Corporation and Future Bright Holdings Limited,

both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 48, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since June 2009. She is also the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She joined
the Company in May 2002. Ms. Chan has over 25 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and finance in both international accounting firms and
listed companies. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and also a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Chan is an executive director of China Strategic Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Well Way Group
Limited (formerly known as “Trasy Gold Ex Limited”), both of which are
listed companies in Hong Kong. She is also the deputy chairman of China
Enterprises Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and the shares
of which are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United States
of America. Ms. Chan is also a director of MRI Holdings Limited (“MRI"”)
whose shares were previously listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
The recommendation by the directors of MRI to return the assets to its
shareholders by way of members’ voluntary liquidation was approved by its
shareholders on 29 April 2010.

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 63, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor, master of
ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator. Mr. Chan has over 33

years' experience in the entertainment and film industry in Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since December 2002 and is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. He was a marketing manager in an international company
engaging in the design of business administration system. Mr. Kwok has
been in the insurance and investment business for over 31 years, principally
in the senior managerial position leading a sizable sales team. He is also an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited and

Hanny Holdings Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2007 and is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the University of Bath,
United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in Business Administration.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the CPA Australia. He is also an independent non-executive

director of Hanny Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since January 2008 and is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a shareholder of a
Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data storage media and
computer related products in Asian countries. He obtained a diploma in
Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and is a member of Singapore Institute of Directors.
Mr. Sin has over 17 years' experience in banking field and has over 17 years'’
sales and marketing experience in information technology industries. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Hanny Holdings Limited, a
listed company in Hong Kong, and China Enterprises Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, and the shares of which are traded on the OTC

Securities Market in the United States of America.
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Senior Management Profile
HARE M B

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, aged 50, has been the Group Financial Controller of
the Company since June 2009 and is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Company in March 1998 and has years
of experience in management, auditing, accounting and finance in both
international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr. Lai holds a Master
degree of Business Administration. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 46, has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. She has extensive experience in company secretarial

practice.

HOTEL BUSINESS

Mr. Ng Chack Yan, aged 63, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited in
November 2002 and was appointed as the Assistant General Manager since
April 2003. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and
a master’s degree in accounting. He has over 26 years of experience in the
hotel industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng held a number of executive
positions in various hotels of the renowned multinational hotel chains in the

PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore, Mauritius and Indonesia.

1 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Senior Management Profile

HOTEL BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheng Chun Chau, aged 48, participated in the foundation of Rosedale
on the Park (“Rosedale-HK"”) in 2000. Mr. Cheng is currently the General
Manager of Rosedale-HK and Rosedale Hotel Kowloon. During the period
from August 2008 to May 2011, he was also the General Manager of
Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Guangzhou. Mr. Cheng holds a master’s degree
in strategic hospitality management and is a member of the Institute of
Hospitality, UK and Academic Consultant in Hospitality Management of
Unity Learning Institute Hong Kong. He has over 29 years of experience and
knowledge in managing hotels and projects in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng held a number of executive positions

in various hotels in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Lucas Chanter, aged 42, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited
in March 2010 and was appointed as the Director of Business Development
since September 2010. Mr. Chanter holds a diploma of hospitality
management. He has over 23 years of experience as a hotelier. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chanter held a number of executive positions in various hotels

and resorts in Australia, Fiji, the Caribbean and Thailand.
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Corporate Governance Report
M EE IR R

INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance which is crucial to the development of the Company and can
safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”).
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted various
policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code during the year
ended 31 December 2013 except for Code Provisions A.1.1, A.4.1., C.1.2
and E.1.2 of the Code.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM
BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is principally engaged in the sector of hotel investments
and management in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). The Company'’s corporate objective is to create and enhance
value for the Shareholders. To achieve this corporate objective, the business
strategies of the Company are to maintain the long term growth and the
profitability of the Company by developing and investing in quality hotels
in decent locations in Hong Kong and in the PRC. Notwithstanding that
the Company shall strive to further comprehend its four-star rated business
hotel network, it shall explore further opportunities in the hospitality sector.
The Company is committed to maintain a solid and healthy financial status
with a solid cash balance and an efficient debt/equity ratio that will enable

the Company to finance the existing operations and proceed with potential

investments.
1 2 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six directors including three executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors whose biographical details

are set out in the “Directors Profile” section of this annual report.

The Board is principally accountable to the Shareholders and responsible for
the leadership and control of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) including overseeing the Group’s businesses, formulating
corporate strategies, establishing strategic directions, monitoring operating
and financial performance, setting objectives and business development

plans, and monitoring the performance of the senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the executive directors of
the Company led by the Managing Director. The Board has also delegated
certain authorities to the senior management of the Company for the day-to-

day running of the Group's operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and holds additional board meetings as
and when required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by the Board in lieu

of a meeting pursuant to Bye-Laws of the Company.

Under Code Provision A.1.1 of the Code, the board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year, two (2) regular Board meetings and three
(3) irregular Board meetings were held. In addition, three (3) resolutions in

writing were passed by the Board.

Although the Board meetings held during the year were not convened
on a quarterly basis, the Board considered that sufficient meetings had
been held as business operations were under the management and the
supervision of the executive directors of the Company. In addition, the Board
has established the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the corporate governance committee to oversee

particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
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Corporate Governance Report
M EE IR R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) BEEE ()
The attendance of each director of the Company at the full board meetings BRARBNEETR T —=—FRITHNEEES
and general meetings held in 2013 is as follows: EERARERGZHEBERLNT !
Attendance
H R B
Annual Special
Board General General
Directors Meetings Meeting Meeting
BE 45 5
== BEEE BRAE BRXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) SROEGEE (£/F) 5/5 0/1 11
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director) PRIS XL (EFARAEHE) 5/5 11 11
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis PR B A 2/5 1”1 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva HEEE 5/5 11 11
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B 5T A 5/5 11 11
Mr. Sin Chi Fai RSB RE 5/5 0/1 0/1
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS EEZE2RERZBER
None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including financial, @~ EZ=&RKE 2 A ETNEZR (BEFBE ¥
business, family or other material/relevant relations) between each other. % oRBsEMEBEKR HEBR)

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the directors and officers of the

Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

1 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

MONTHLY UPDATES TO DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision C.1.2 of the Code, the management should provide
all directors with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge their

duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Monthly updates of the Company for the period from January 2013 to May
2013 were not provided to the directors of the Company timely due to the

insignificant updated information to be reported during the relevant period.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in August 2013,
to guide the Board in developing and achieving its diversity in terms of skills,
professional experience, knowledge, expertise, education, age, gender and

length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

In selecting new directors, the Nomination Committee will identify suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and recommend to

the Board, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination

Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity on the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account

diversity of background.

The Board did not set any measurable objectives for implementing the Policy
at the current time having taken into account of the existing composition of

the Board and the business nature of the Group.

The Board will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued

effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Report
M EE IR R

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director, who
performs the function of chief executive officer, are held by Mr. Cheung
Hon Kit and Ms. Chan Ling, Eva separately. The Chairman is responsible for
the leadership of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for
the operation of the business and performance of the Group. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director of the

Company is clearly established and set out in writing.

Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Cheung
Hon Kit, was unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 30 May
2013 (the “2013 AGM") as he had an overseas engagement. Nevertheless,
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, the Managing Director, attended and took the chair
of the 2013 AGM in accordance with Bye-Law 68 of the Bye-Laws of the

Company and answered questions from the shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh

their knowledge and skills.

During the year, directors of the Company are provided with materials on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Directors of the Company are also
encouraged to attend the relevant training courses and seminars at the

Company's expenses.

1 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
6 Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS' TRAINING (CONTINUED)

According to the records received by the Company, all directors of the
Company (namely, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, Mr. Chan Pak
Cheung, Natalis, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr.
Sin Chi Fai) have participated in continuous professional development during
the year by reading materials provided by the Company. Besides, Ms. Chan

Ling, Eva attended other seminars.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The current independent
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. However, all directors (including executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of
the Bye-Laws of the Company. As such, the Company considers that this is

no less exacting than that in the Code.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On 27 March 2014, the
Nomination Committee held a meeting to assess the annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company. Taking into account the independence criteria as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination Committee considered
that all independent non-executive directors of the Company remained

independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
M EE IR R

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the Company by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors
of the Company, the Company confirmed that all directors of the Company
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)

with written terms of reference in line with the Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are all independent
non-executive directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Poon Kwok

Hing, Albert.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company and to oversee the relationship with the
Company's external auditor. It also assists the Board to oversee the financial
reporting system and internal control procedures (including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function).

During 2013, three (3) meetings of the Audit Committee were held with the

management of the Company and the Company’s external auditor:

(1)  to review and/or discuss financial reporting matters including the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and made

recommendation for the Board's approval;

1 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
8 Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

(2) toreview and approve the engagement letter of external auditor for the

review of the Group’s 2013 interim results; and
(3) to review the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
In addition, the Audit Committee passed one (1) resolution in writing in 2013
regarding the engagement letter of the external auditor for the audit of the

Group's 2012 annual results.

The members and attendance of the meetings of the Audit Committee are

as follows:

Members of Audit Committee Attendance
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 3/3
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 3/3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the

Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director. The Remuneration Committee is chaired

by Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to consider and
recommend to the Board the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
and to review and determine the remuneration and compensation packages

of the executive directors and senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
M BB IR R

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During 2013, the Remuneration Committee held two (2) meetings:

(1)  to review and make recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fees

for independent non-executive directors of the Company for 2014; and

(2) to review the remuneration policy of the Company such as the
proposed level of salary increase for 2014, the fringe benefits to the
employees of the Company and the remuneration packages of the

executive directors and senior management of the Company.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee passed one (1) resolution in writing
in 2013 regarding the payment of discretionary bonuses to the Managing

Director and the senior management of the Company.

The members and attendance of the meeting of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

Members of Remuneration Committee Attendance
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 2/2
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva 2/2

The directors of the Company are remunerated with reference to their
respective duties and responsibilities with the Company and prevailing
market conditions. During the year, no directors of the Company were
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration. Details of emoluments
of the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

2 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
O Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration of the members of

the senior management of the Company is within the following bands:

e KRR e

FMEEE ()

BE_Z—=F1+_A=t—BHLFE &2
AZEREEABZHMENTHENA:

Number of
Senior
Management
EREE
AEHE

Up to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director. The Nomination Committee is chaired

by Mr. Cheung Hon Kit.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
corporate strategy of the Company; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board member, to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company; to review regularly the time required
from a director of the Company to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company; and to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

The nomination of directors will be taken into consideration of the nominee’s
qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company, with due

regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

No new directors were nominated for appointment during the year ended 31

December 2013.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During 2013, the Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings:
(1) to review the independence of independent non-executive directors of
the Company;

(2) to recommend to the Board the nomination of retiring directors for

re-election at the 2013 annual general meeting; and
(3) toreview the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

(4)  to review the time required from a director of the Company to perform

his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The members and attendance of the meeting of the Nomination Committee

are as follows:

Members of Nomination Committee Attendance
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 2/2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee (the
"“Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference in line

with the Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The Corporate Governance

Committee is chaired by Ms. Chan Ling, Eva.

22 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee are to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and to review the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During 2013, the Corporate Governance Committee held two (2) meetings:

(1) to review the Company’s practices on corporate governance and
the Company'’s practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(2)  toreview the Company’s compliance with the Code for the year ended

31 December 2012 and for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and

disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report and interim report; and

(3) to review the training and continuous professional development of

directors of the Company.

The members and attendance of the meeting of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:

Members of Corporate

Governance Committee Attendance
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva 2/2
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report
M EE IR R

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which gives a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of the Company have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

During the year, the external auditor of the Company received approximately
HK$3,936,000 for audit services and approximately HK$3,122,000 for

interim review and other non-audit services.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 43.

Internal Control

During the year, the Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control procedures which include the
policies, procedures and monitoring system, for safeguarding the interests
of the Shareholders and also the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function

and their training programmes and budget.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company. During the year,
the Company Secretary has complied with the relevant professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy

setting out various channels of communication with Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through various channels including financial reports (interim and annual
reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as other documents submitted to The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company’s website at

www.rhh.com.hk.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively communicate
with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the opportunity of asking

questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on

their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and external auditor will be
present at annual general meetings of the Company to answer Shareholders’

questions.
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Corporate Governance Report
M EE IR R

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to put enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be sent by mail to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 31/F, Paul Y.
Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong or by email to
info@rhh.com.hk for the attention of Company Secretary who will direct the

enquiries to the Board for handling.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), Shareholder(s) holdings not less than one-tenth (10%) of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,

may request the Board to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
for the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of several

documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a special general
meeting by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders in accordance
with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws of the

Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting (Continued)

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a

special general meeting will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date. A general meeting so convened by the requisionist(s)
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in which

meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), (i) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which the
requisition relates; or (ii) not less than one hundred (100) Shareholders, can

submit a requisition in writing to the Company:

(@) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual general
meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal for election as
a Director) which may be moved and is intended to be moved at that

meeting;

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand (1,000)
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution

or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings (Continued)

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may consist
of one or several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists) and deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the
attention of the Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company's relevant expenses and not less than six (6) weeks before the
annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of resolution
or not less than one (1) week before the general meeting in case of any
other requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a
date six (6) weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been

properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or circulating the statement for the

general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisionist(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purpose, the requisionist(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in
the agenda for the annual general meeting or the statement will not be

circulated for the general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a director
of the Company, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company's website at www.rhh.com.hk.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in hotel operations and trading of securities. Details of the
Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note

45 to the consolidation financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 45 and 46

of this annual report.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company has resolved not to
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December

2013 (2012: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on page

174 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out

in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
O

ARBER([EFBEZEARAREKE
RE (i AEEDBE—_T—=F1+_A
ST BUEFEZFREEEREEMBER
*o

FEXK

ARBATI—REERRDR - L ENBRRRE
ERERERBLHEE - ARAN_FT—=F

ToA=+T—BENIENBRRZERERNE
FRARE M BMRMT L5 ©

FERIKE

FEEBE_ZE—=F+_A=T—HIFE
ZEBEN AT RIS ZERERBA5E k46
Ho
RAAREEG([EEQ)ERBRTEZRE
BE_ZT—=-F+-_A=+—BLLFEZXH
BE(ZE——F:#)-

PBHE

FAEEBERAF2MBREHNAFRE74
Ho

N

A TB®R
RHFE32 ©

R H AT A 7
‘ )L2013K§5$ﬁ 29



Report of the Directors
O o

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which were
available for distribution to the Shareholders at 31 December 2013 were
approximately HK$155,247,000 (2012: HK$229,552,000).

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group are set out in the note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2013 are set out

on pages 175 to 176 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Cheung
Hon Kit and Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

EECESER

MN_E—=F+_F=+—HB EEREARQF
SN HAREEE (B8 RESFRPEGRG ([#5
REIE&HI]) EXVED) 2 I fh - AERERR 1 K 1B
BREA 2R ROAR M S RK
(a)— iR IR 8 5 M BB 6 Il 83521578 T 18 17
ZERMATRCEE  R(oYRIBER L 4R Bt

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by %+ 2 EABITAEBETES L HWIZEST
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of B ([4Z#5pR| ) BAARAT REEBH AL S
the Listing Rules were as follows: FrARAR ([HAFT) T -
Interests in the shares R z#E =
Approximate

Long position/ Capacity/ Number of percentage of
Name of Director Short position Nature of interest shares held shareholding
BEEEE HR/ KR B RERiEE RO BE REZBMAED L
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Long position Beneficial owner 7,500 0.000%
SR EAE HE BERERA 7,500 0.000%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
3 May 2002 (as amended on 27 May 2005), which expired on 3 May 2012.
No options were granted or remained outstanding under the Scheme on the

expiry date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Following the expiry of the Scheme, a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 30 May 2013. The New Scheme
is valid and effective for a period for 10 years commencing on 3 June 2013
(the date on which the last condition to the New Scheme was satisfied)
until 2 June 2023, subject to earlier termination by the Company in general

meeting or by the Board.

No Options under the New Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled or

lapsed during the period from 3 June 2013 to 31 December 2013.

The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “"Options”) to any eligible
employee (including executive directors), any non-executive director, any
supplier of goods or services and any customer of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”), any
consultant, adviser, manager, officer and entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group and the Invested
Entity and any shareholder or any member of the Group who has contributed
to the business of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions or potential contribution to the

Group (the “Participant”).

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted under
the New Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any other
schemes, is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the date of adoption of the New Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"”) unless the Company obtains an approval from the Shareholders in
general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit such that the number
of shares of the Company in respect of which Options may be granted under
the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval. Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and
not yet exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company

from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which Options may be
granted under the New Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the Shareholders in

general meeting.

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder of the Company or
any Independent Non-executive Director, or any of their respective associates
(as defined in Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules), would result in the number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options already granted
and to be granted to such person in 12-month period up to and including the

date of such grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in

issue, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of each grant in excess of HK$5 million,

such grant of Options shall be subject to prior approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting who are not connected persons of the Company as defined

in the Listing Rules.

The subscription price of the Options under the New Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case will not

be lower than the highest of

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which

must be a trading day;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(i)  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)  the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

The acceptance of an Option granted under the New Scheme must be
taken up within 21 days from the date of grant and to be accompanied by
payment of the consideration of HK$1.00. The Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant and subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof and the Board may provide restrictions on the exercise of

an Option.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the New Scheme is 65,767,587 shares of the

Company, which represents 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company or had exercised any such right during the

year.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESSES

Interests of the Directors, other than Independent Non-executive Directors,
in competing businesses as at 31 December 2013 required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Director

ESEH

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

HEBRARRLER 2

EBRARFIURTRERTIECERERE

EERNAHRFUERT 2EDR

RiE _ETRAIEES. 101
HITEERIIN RN -_T—=F+-F=+—H

RATIREESE (B

RAEBRFUEE 2 ERIT

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group
HEBRARBALERZ
XBERFHATREREEZ
BB

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

EERZER REEHE

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit

REESTE

ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”) and its subsidiaries

ERmEREEROR ([EFHME])

R E BB~ &)
China Development Limited
Rz EERARAA
Artnos Limited
BAfE AR A A
Co-Forward Development Ltd.
BERERAR AT
Orient Centre Limited
REBRRAF
Super Time Limited
REARAE
Asia City Holdings Ltd.
DHEBRBRAF
Supreme Best Ltd.

Supreme Best Ltd.

Orient Holdings Limited

RESEARAR

Link Treasure International Limited

FERRERAA

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
3 6 Annual Report 2013

Property development and
investment and hotel
operation in Hong Kong
and the PRC

REELTEEEHEER
RIKE RAgEBIE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Chairman and Executive
Director of ITC Properties

BEMEZEIRR
WITES

Director and shareholder
EFZNBE

Director and shareholder
BENRE

Director and shareholder
EERBRE

Director and shareholder
EFZNBE

Director and shareholder
BENRE

Director and shareholder
EERBRE
Shareholder

AR

Director and shareholder
BENRE

Director and beneficial
shareholder

EENERER



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the

Name of Director businesses of the Group

HEBBHRREALEE 2

EESEH8 EBREBRFURATRERFIECERERE

Report of the Directors

R

EERNARFURRZ2ER (®

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group
HEBWRAREAEEZ
E¥BERBUATEERIMEZ
EEA

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

ESRZERZRENE

Silver City Limited

RIBERAF

Cosmo Luck Limited

Cosmo Luck Limited

Ocean Region Limited

Ocean Region Limited

Treasure Avenue Limited

RAEAR DT
Ready Access Ltd.

Ready Access Ltd.

City Corporation Ltd.

City Corporation Ltd.

Big Gold Limited

Big Gold Limited

Rich Joy Investment Ltd.

BHEREBRAT

Profit Grace Holdings Ltd.

MESEERAR

Hegel Trading Limited

EMESERAT

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above mentioned entities,

the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at

arm’s length, from the business of those entities.

Property investment in

Director and shareholder

Hong Kong
REBREHERE BENMERR
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder
Hong Kong
REBNEHERE BRRR
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder
Hong Kong
REBEFHERE EaERE
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder
Hong Kong
REENEWERE EEBE
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder
Hong Kong
REBRFHERSE EmBE
Property investment in Shareholder
Hong Kong
REBRFHERE &R
Property investment in Beneficial Shareholder
Hong Kong
REBUEHERE BRBRR
Property investment in Beneficial Shareholder
Hong Kong
REBNEWERE BRBRR
Property investment in Beneficial Shareholder
Hong Kong
REENEWERE EaEBE
Property investment in Beneficial Shareholder
Hong Kong
REENEWERE EEBE
HREFSBEYUNLUBEZEFTE AL
MR B NS R AT G R
7o

AR 42 IR AT B A ] 37
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Report of the Directors
O o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER FERRREMA LT ZER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of persons, other R-ZT—=F+_-A=+—8 RIEZHFLH
than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as S 1§ E336l&M 172 Z LM - =LA
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO A AR FIRLD K 48 B8 AL Fh B RO R s sk

were as follows: KRBT
(i) Interests in the shares (i) AR ziER
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Capacity/ Number of capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position Nature of interest shares held the Company
HARATE
BITRAZ
BRRERB wE/ %R Bt EnttE FERGEHE BHOBED
(@) Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 1,132,450 0.17%
BREISR &+ (fzE1) HAE ERBEA 1,132,450 0.17%
Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
HE REH ARz ER 194,336,000 29.55%
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (Note 1) Long position Interest of spouse 195,468,450 29.72%
AL (1) e iRk g 195,468,450 29.72%
ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC") Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
(Note 1) corporation
EECESBERAR ([EEELE]) #A SRt VNI $ 194,336,000 29.55%
(Hiz1)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
(“ITC Investment”) (Note 1) corporation
ITC Investment Holdings Limited 35 SREL NI S 194,336,000 29.55%
(TITC Investment | ) (#731)
Leaptop Investments Limited (Note 1) Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
Leaptop Investments Limited (#7:71) & L YNCIPA 3 194,336,000 29.55%
Asia Will Limited ("AWL") (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 194,336,000 29.55%
BEARRA([BE]) (Wi1) A ERBEA 194,336,000 29.55%

3 8 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interests in the shares (Continued)

Report of the Directors

oW

FERRREMALT 2#ER (8

() Rz (58)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Long position/ Capacity/ Number of capital of

Name of Shareholder Short position Nature of interest shares held the Company

EEAFE

BITREZ

BRRE®B Br/ KR 51 RnttE FEROBE BAOED L

(b) China Enterprises Limited ("CEL") Long position Interest of controlled 48,660,424 7.40%
(Note 2) corporation

China Enterprises Limited ([CEL]) HE i VNI 3 48,660,424 7.40%

(Hist2)

Long position Beneficial owner 250,000 0.04%

HE BEHBEAA 250,000 0.04%

Cosmos Regent Ltd. (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 43,325,554 6.59%

Cosmos Regent Ltd. (#/##2) e ERBEAA 43,325,554 6.59%

Notes:

M

AWL was interested in 194,336,000 shares of the Company and was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop Investments Limited which in
turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment. ITC Investment
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
("Dr. Chan") directly and indirectly held a total of more than one third
of the issued share capital of ITC and was therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by AWL. Dr. Chan also
personally held 1,132,450 shares of the Company. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan,
Macy, the spouse of Dr. Chan, was therefore deemed to be interested
in the shares of the Company held by AWL and Dr. Chan.

In addition to the interests as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the Company
was notified that AWL held 195,706,000 shares of the Company as at
31 December 2013.

B

M

15 & %5 194,336,00008 & 2 AR5 2
TE%S %A 7)) Leaptop Investments
Limitedz 2 & I & A 7] - MLeaptop
Investments Limited8l] &ITC Investment
Z2E2EWBARAFRCITC Investment’
EHLEZZEMB AR -FRE®E
T(IRETDEEREERAFER
BFhoEZEBITRABBE=92—"
EU W RIEEB B LB AR FR
MzEEm - RELTTTAEAAZRERE
1,132,4508% 2 22 A) A& 17 o {0 450 8 22 &=
ARE L2 BE B IERERY
ERETSEARARRG 2w o

BRANRA RIARIEFE F X B IR DI 53361&
MEATHEZECMETE 2 SN
RAARBHEBER-_TE—=F1+=
A =+—H#7%5195,706,0008 & A A
A% -

AR A AT R )
2013 4t

39



Report of the Directors
O o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Interests in the shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(2)  Million Good Limited and Cosmos Regent Ltd. were interested in
5,334,870 shares of the Company and 43,325,554 shares of the
Company respectively and were wholly-owned subsidiaries of CEL.
CEL was therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Million Good Limited and Cosmos Regent Ltd..

According to the interests as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under 336 of the SFO, CEL held 48,910,424
shares of the Company. The Company was notified that the 250,000
shares of the Company held by CEL in the capacity of beneficial owner
had been sold and CEL held 48,660,424 shares of the Company as at
31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company had not
been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors) who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to Part XV of the SFO.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors since the publication of the
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2013
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules were set

out below:
A discretionary bonus of HK$300,000 was paid to Ms. Chan Ling, Eva in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 in January 2014.

The updated biographic details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors

Profile” section of this annual report.

4 O Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December

2013.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group's provident fund schemes are set out in note 41 to

the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in

Bermuda.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the total value of

the Group's purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company

has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to

HK$6,000.
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Report of the Directors
O o

AUDITOR % B Em

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company ~ EEE@BRARARBMBAFAES HIZ2EEE
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. £ B3R 5 & 5T 1T A A QD RIAZ EAD 2 R 3%

2.
On behalf of the Board REEZS
CHEUNG HON KIT B
CHAIRMAN ROES
Hong Kong, 27 March 2014 BE —_T-NE=ZA=++H
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Independent Auditor's Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF ROSEDALE HOTEL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBEEZRERATF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosedale
Hotel Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 173, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report
T ~r. A% BCH e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2014

4 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
A 18 2 S A 2 i WAL #R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B EZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—g—=F —ET——fF
B FET FHET
Turnover -] 5 447,220 429,466
Direct operating costs BELEKAR (331,933) (318,660)
Gross profit EH 115,287 110,806
Interest income F2WA 7 1,829 194
Other income, gains and losses EMUA - e R EE 8 5,433 (6,130)
Distribution and selling expenses DHRHERT (4,613) (5,550)
Administrative expenses THHAX (223,485) (151,439)
Finance costs AR A 9 (32,283) (18,602)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEERE 2 e
investment 19 - 17,037
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary fR{EHE —KH B R Rz Uz 37 781,773 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of A HH E1% & 2 B HRREEE
available-for-sale investment 19 (32,239) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of E b & E 7 B ERBEEE
other intangible assets 20 - (34,081)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of #1% « # 23 MR 2
property, plant and equipment BRI EEE 15 (50,407) (44,183)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of H At & E 7 B R EEE
other assets 21 (11,160) -
(Loss) gain on disposals of subsidiaries &M B ARz (Ei8) Wz 37 (20,059) 2,216
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ H&E¥E 2K R E 2 EE
equipment (5,742) (26,251)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—KREe2 QA= 18 5,166 =
Reversal of impairment losses on JER—RELRRIFRIEZ
amount due from a joint venture WEBERE 18 7,089 =
(Decrease) increase in fair value of wEMEZ XN HEE O ) B
investment properties 16 (30,108) 9,971
Share of result of an associate FEIE —REFE RRIRE (1,223) (2,100)
Share of result of a joint venture EH—REERAIELE (3,074) =
Profit (loss) before taxation BR 75t A& A (E18) 10 502,184 (148,112)
Income tax expense TS iR & 12 (59,086) (933)
Profit (loss) for the year RER&F (E8) 443,098 (149,045)

R AE PR P24
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
s 18 Al B At 4 i Wi 25 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE — T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB—-=F —ET—_F
B 5 FERT FHIT
Other comprehensive (expense) Hitt2mE (B) A
income
ltems that may be reclassified HErgeEmoEsEas
subsequently to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange difference arising on HEFINA R SRR
translation of financial statements EECENZTE
of foreign operations 29,182 5,822
Reclassification adjustment of RAIEL & — KM B A 76
translation reserve upon deemed MEH iz E D HAR
disposal of a subsidiary (125,543) -
Reclassification adjustment of & — KM B A B8
translation reserve upon disposal of MEH iz E D HAR
a subsidiary (3,526) -
(99,887) 5,822
Total comprehensive income (expense)  AFE 2 MU A () 4258
for the year 343,211 (143,223)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AN E % ) (f&518)
B NFI AT :
Owners of the Company ZA/NGIEZ 2SN 381,966 (143,188)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R = 61,132 (5,857)
443,098 (149,045)
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2 M UW A (B ) 4248
attributable to: B F AT :
Owners of the Company KABHEA A 280,569 (137,366)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR 62,642 (5,857)
343,211 (143,223)
HK$ HK$
BT om
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE BREF (BH)
— Basic —H K 14 0.58 (0.22)
4 6 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ok T W 25 50K O AR

At 31 December 2013 R =T —=F+ - A =+—H
2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E——fF
B FET FHET
Non-current assets EMBE E
Property, plant and equipment ERE S Y S ] 15 576,679 2,202,407
Investment properties "B 16 299,000 324,000
Interest in an associate R—REE R R 2w 17 269,627 4
Interests in joint ventures REEREZER 18 - 17,050
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 19 31,638 63,877
Other intangible assets Hi i\ & E 20 - -
Amount due from an associate JE U — Bk ' R R FRIR 17 - 31,896
Pledged bank deposits BHEFRITER 25 - 11,780
Club debentures, at cost less BES  BAARE
impairment HERRE 520 520
Other assets Hith &&= 21 - 50,804
1,177,464 2,702,338
Current assets BB E
Inventories FE 22 3,489 6,184
Trade and other receivables E 5 Rk E A e WER T 23 815,120 54,001
Investments held for trading FIEEEZIRE 24 535 290
Pledged bank deposits B FIRITER 25 306,079 3,263
Bank balances and cash RITEH MRS 25 427,273 364,066
1,552,496 427,804
Assets classified as held for sale DERFIELECEE 26 837,306 =
2,389,802 427,804
Current liabilities mBBE
Trade and other payables B 5 & HAth FE T BR 5K 27 98,962 117,061
Tax liabilities MIAE & 77,454 11,571
Borrowings — amount due within BE-—FANEHRIE
one year 28 216,000 467,889
Amount due to a non-controlling B —RMEAR—&
shareholder of a subsidiary FEFERR AR SRR 29 9,509 9,157
Derivative financial instrument MTHEemI A 30 - 2,730
401,925 608,408
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Aok B B 25 5K 0 R AR

At 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=%F+_-A=+—H

2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—=F —ET—_F
B = FET T
Liabilities associated with assets HABARELEZ
classified as held for sale BEEMBEE 26 635,944 -
Net current assets (liabilities) REEE (AE)FE 1,351,933 (180,604)
Total assets less current liabilities BEREREDARG 2,529,397 2,521,734
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Borrowings — amount due after BE——F&IHRIEA
one year 28 250,000 458,222
Deferred taxation IRIEFIE 31 60,804 173,754
310,804 631,976
Net assets BEFE 2,218,593 1,889,758
Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital N 32 6,577 6,577
Reserves i 34 1,969,577 1,698,410
Equity attributable to owners of RABHEE AEGEER
the Company 1,976,154 1,704,987
Non-controlling interests FEPE R R = 242,439 184,771
Total equity T MR 2,218,593 1,889,758

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 173 were approved ~ SR FASEEF173B 2 AP BRERER =
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2014 and are ~ T—PUF = A -+ +HAEEES i E RIRET

signed on its behalf by: B WHTIESREES:
CHAN PAK CHEUNG, NATALIS CHAN LING, EVA BRBE BRE:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR HiTEE HTESE
4 8 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o Bt AR 5 5 ) 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B EZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEARL
Accumulated Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Other (losses) controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 34) (Note a)
g3t
R& RiEE HRIGE EXffH HfbdE  (F8R) 87 it FERRER A&t
TET Thx TERT TET TEL TEx TERT TET FEL
(WizE34) (GET)
At 1 January 2012 WZ-Z--F-F-H 6,577 1,248,048 658,303 244,591 (57,607) (244,953) 1,854,959 239,287 2,094,246
Other comprehensive income for the year A% £ 2EMRA—~
- exchange difference arising on BRI B BRER
translation of financial statements of EEZERZR
foreign operations - - - 5822 - - 5822 - 5,822
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - (143,188) (143,188) (5857) (149,045)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AEEREMA (FR)EE
for the year - - - 5822 - (143,188) (137,366) (5,857) (143,223
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHBAR - - - - - - - 735 735
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries from AFERRREENBARZ
non-controlling shareholders Rfn - - - - (12,606) - (12,606) (49,394) (62,000)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-—f+-R=1+-A 6,577 1,248,048 658,303 250,413 (70,213) (388,141) 1,704,987 184,771 1,889,758
Other comprehensive expense for the year ~ AFEH{t 2E X
Exchange difference arising on translation of & BIMA R BRKFEL 2
financial statements of foreign operations B 5 % - - - 27,672 - - 27,672 1510 29,182
Redclassification adjustment of translation ~ E{EH E—FHBAFE
reserve upon deemed disposal of ERREZENDRAR
a subsidiary - - - (125,543) - - (125,543) - (125,543)
Reclassification adjustment of translation & —RHIBAAIKER G2
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary BHAERAR - - (3,526) - - (3,526) - (3,526)
Profit for the year REFE - - - - - 381,966 381,966 61,132 443,098
Total comprehensive (expense) income FEERE (RX)RABE
for the year - - - (101,397) - 381,966 280,569 62,642 343211
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBAR - - - = = - = (876) (876)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELE-—FHBAR - - - - 13,093 (13,093) = = =
Purchase of shares of a subsidiary from non-  EIFFERERBEE —K
controlling shareholders (note 42) WEBARZRE (HzH42) - - - - (9,402) - (9,402) (4,098) (13,500)
At 31 December 2013 WZZ-=F+-f=1-A 6,577 1,248,048 658,303 149,016 (66,522) (19,268) 1,976,154 242,439 2,218,593

Note a: When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already an entity ~ Fi3fa : BAEEEME RS ESEHE 2 B

controlled by the Group, it is accounted for as equity transaction. The 2 BREISME ARAR S ALK
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and non-controlling interests AEEERIIFERERZ RAESE
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the AR - ARS8 R %M E A RIAERE
subsidiary. Other reserves represent the differences between the amount w2 BE) o B REE IR IR 2 B
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of CHEEENEAERIENREAT
the consideration paid that is recognised directly in equity. BEBZEZRE-

BB W AT WL )
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBaea®

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB—-=F —ET—_F
FERT FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZ2HERE
Profit (loss) for the year AEZHF (EE) 443,098 (149,045)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Share of result of an associate JEME—REEE A A LA 1,223 2,100
Share of result of a joint venture FE(E— é-\l EWNCIES 3,074 -
Depreciation of property, ME MBRRBHEINE
plant and equipment 95,859 76,804
Interest income A EUA (1,829) (194)
Other interest expenses HEMF SR 32,283 13,102
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HERZEZ
plant and equipment &8 5,742 26,251
Fair value gain on derivative PTHEEMIAZ
financial instrument AN EERE (650) (128)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HETHEERE 2 s
sale investment - (17,037)
Impairment loss recognised in Ht\EPEEE L
respect of other intangible assets B ERREEE - 34,081
Impairment loss recognised in M B RREZ
respect of property, B R EEE
plant and equipment 50,407 44,183
Impairment loss recognised in HithEE 2 B HERREERE
respect of other assets 11,160 =
Impairment loss recognised in HAth FEUBR R Z
respect of other receivables BRI EE R 7,871 11,526
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—REERQ 72145(¥ (5.166) =
Reversal of impairment losses on JEW—REERBIRIBZ
amount due from a joint venture R (B & 18 B [m) (7,089) =
Impairment loss recognised in AHEEREZ
respect of available-for-sale BRI EEE
investment 32,239 -
Increase in fair value of FIEEBEZIREZ
investments held for trading NEEEEN (245) (1,849)
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHE—RMBRAZ
a subsidiary e (715,029) -
Loss (gain) on disposals of HEMBATZ
subsidiaries EE (fa) 20,059 (2,216)
Loss on disposal of investments LERIEEEZIRE ZBE
held for trading 162 -
Decrease (increase) in fair value of LEYHE 2 R EEF D
investment properties (£hn) 30,108 (9,971)
Amortisation of other HthmR B E 2B
intangible assets - 4,937
Operating cash flows before movements & & & B EAI 2 LEBERE
in working capital 3,277 32,544

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
5 O Annual Report 2013




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

22 N\ N =
HAEHEHE
E-_F—=F+_HA=+—HILEE

2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—=F —ET—_F
B FET FHET
Movements in working capital EEESE
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 K& E A FEUBR 3k
other receivables (350 ) ik > (91,345) 703
Decrease in investments BIEEEZRERD
held for trading - 17,241
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (M) 2,695 (96)
Increase in other assets H & AN - (17,943)
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 Kk EAERBRIK
other payables #an CR ) 18,391 (13,114)
(70,259) (13,209)
Cash (used in) from operations wEEK (FTR)ABZRE (66,982) 19,335
Taxation paid in the People’s Republic of B2 ZE A REFBEF A
China (4,668) (5,441)
Net cash (used in) from e (A S 2R e 58
operating activities (71,650) 13,894
Cash flows from investing activities KBS ZEERE
Additions to property, plant and BEME HEREBHEAR
equipment and investment wEWE
properties (62,473) (240,778)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEDERBERITER (307,816) (55,916)
Proceeds from disposal of HE At E R E S RIA
available-for-sale investment - 71,296
Disposal of derivative HETESRT A
financial instrument (2,080) -
Disposal of interest in a joint venture HER—KEERa 2R 4 =
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits ~ #2EX 2 IR 1T 1F K 11,780 55,806
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HaE R
plant and equipment R PTIS ARIE 264 22,481
Repayment from an investee —RFEIRENTER 41,077 12,300
Interest received =&k 1,829 194
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries & K & A & TS RUA 37a 46,999 -
Proceeds from deemed disposal of RIEEE—KMB A A
a subsidiary Fr8 I8 37b 297,311 =
Net cash from (used in) S EEEFTS (FTA) 2R e 58
investing activities 26,895 (134,617)

TR ¥ 5 o IR PR A ]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
maBleiER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB—-=F —ET—_F
B 5 FERT FHIT
Cash flows from financing activities HEIH RERE
New borrowings raised MERE 195,000 289,000
Repayment of bank and EERITREMBEE
other borrowings (22,456) (69,732)
Purchase of shares of a subsidiary MIEERRREE —R
from non-controlling shareholders LhyE=PNCl i) (13,500) (62,000)
Repayment of loan to BE-—REEQAFER
a related company - (14,569)
Interest paid BAF & (32,283) (13,102)
Repayment to a related company BE-—XKBELTRNK - (100)
Net cash from financing activities REBEEEMECREFE 126,761 129,497
Net increase in cash and cash ReERBSFHEIER 2 INFE
equivalents 82,006 8,774
Cash and cash equivalents FHzHe kB SEFEIEE
at beginning of the year 364,066 353,202
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ¥ [ = 5 B) 5/ 2 3,315 2,090
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRrBEekRSZMEIEAER A
the year, represented by
Bank balances and cash RITEH KRR 449,387 364,066
Bank balances included in assets FFASEABELEZ
classified as held for sale BEZIRTTES 26 (22,114) =
427,273 364,066
2 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
5 Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its substantial shareholder
is ITC Corporation Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operation and trading

of securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for

the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 —
2011 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities

— &R

RARIRBRETMKL BEREBRA
8 EBRGB TR EBHARSARRA A
(MR frl) E-HEFEZRTAEHFLE
SEERAR AREl M ER & E
T B 7 M R F IR A R E BB

==

= o

AR —RIWEER AT HEZH 8B
NAR BRSO EERNFELFESR -

o) ﬁﬂ%ﬁi’%)’ﬁ%%n(ﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂi@ﬂzm

PE RG] RAEIEET 2 BB
BHRELEA ([FEMBRE
2R )
ARBNAEEEREA T b ESE:
AR ((BBRHAAR])EM 2
BASIERI BB 85 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE — T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

54

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS

10, HKFRS 11 and

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure of
interests in other entities: Transition
guidance

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entities

Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and joint

ventures

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income
Stripping costs in the production phase of

a surface mine

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures, and the
guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers, has
been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11,
there are only two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and
joint ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS
11 is determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to
the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated
three types of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based
on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that
was established through a separate entity was accounted for as a
jointly controlled entity). The initial and subsequent accounting of joint
ventures and joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation

is no longer allowed).
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2. 45

2=

ZRE115E2

EEMEHREENEVIFRAT S E
B35 [REEARIZER]  Mas
HERE (B8 (FBRBEEZEE) &
BE135 [ HFE
FEBEE] ) ZEIEMABBETE
AIZE285% (T ——FLHER]) - BB
R 2ERIZE 1157 5T BA B R ok A B RS
BHREGIEZ &SRR ERA
BRo-RBEEBUBREERENR A%
ZHEDRME  GEXEBREE AR
REEBWBREENENRHAER
B2 BREREHHEERHEZEFR
BER EPERASTHIEER EER
A RHEHTREZALNGERREIEA
EENBEREMEE SEEFHERHE
REHIE 2 &7 (ARG E ) A H
ZERHRECEERTIREBBELZE
BB R AR AR HREHEZS
7 (BB ZAZRBRHTEEIE
FzBERYE- A BEGERE3
SE=BAERHEN - HEEHIEE -
HRESI S R EREGEE - BIRES
BIEAIENREHAE R D AT ER
RZBRPEZ R (HlER— B
BETH— LR e
BRIMEBTE A4 RRIRALER Y
REEGTEREF AL THER -REE
Al
&

a_f
it
EET%
o>
i
i
@
i\

ZERERRAEDE (TBRRAL

FH R I 4 JBEAT RO )
' 2013 4 55



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ﬁlﬂ:»
P14 A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE — T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

56

o W 5 ik B

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (Continued)

Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that each joint
operator recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly),
its revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets
and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to its interest

in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable Standards.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of HKFRS
12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements (please see notes 17, 18 and 45 for details).

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad:
the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both
financial instrument items and nonfinancial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes
of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment

purposes).

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive

disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any
new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative
period (please see notes 16, 36¢ for the 2013 disclosures). Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to HKAS 1, the Group's ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1
does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive

income and total comprehensive income.

Except as described above, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS

10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 14

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

Investment entities?

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?
Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and

transition disclosures’

Financial instruments®

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities’

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets’

Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting’

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 —
2012 cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 —
2013 cycle?

Regulatory deferral accounts®

Levies’
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60

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

& Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions.

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new

requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,

with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities" credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s

risk management activities have also been introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have a significant impact on the amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s
investments in unlisted equity shares that are currently classified as
available-for-sale investments may have to be measured at fair value
at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the fair
value being recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the Group's financial
assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that

effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 Investment entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity and require
a reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment entity not
to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at

fair value through profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

e  obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management

services;

e commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or
both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its

investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS

27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The directors of the Group do not anticipate that the investment entities
amendments will have any effect on the Group'’s consolidated financial

statements as the Group is not an investment entity.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated
when there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment of
the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used when the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair value less

costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties, investments held
for trading and derivative financial instrument that are measured at fair

values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINnUED)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as

net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the

owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from

the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINnUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity

method is discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnuED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related

to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in

its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint
venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale. Any retained portion of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method. The Group
discontinues the use of the equity method at the time of disposal when
the disposal results in the Group losing significant influence over the

associate or joint control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained
interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with HKAS 39
unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a joint
venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method (see the
accounting policy regarding investments in associates or joint ventures

above).

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value

less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from hotels accommodation, food and banquet operations are

recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and freehold land held for use in the
production or supply of services or for administrative purposes other
than hotel properties under construction and construction in progress
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property, plant and equipment commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than hotel properties under
construction and construction in progress less their estimated residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of the each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held
for undetermined future use which is regarded as held for capital

appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the

investment properties under construction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the property

is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-

term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the line item in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the

manner disclosed in note 36¢.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS") are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss

when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period (see accounting policy in respect of impairment

loss on financial assets below).

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost and of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or it is those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in

the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in

profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, loan from
a related company, amount due to a related company, borrowings
and amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

3.

FESTBUR (5)
SWMIA(®)
SHEERKRETA (4)
FBES AT EEHEZ 2 BE

HWEema BB EREEHE SN SHER
RHiEEEBERRATEATE RIHHR

=R
RBEBERIEATEEH-

& BB THER  RERBEREES

FIEEE:

o HAB/FERNVIARKEBRIMmMESE
%

o EHRNSHRBAERLAEEAH
EEZEHEMNERTAES D
B BRERGHERNRE %

o HREBVARBEE BTAIBARER
HHRTRAZITET A

BRERBRATEEAEZSREETZ
NHEEFE MEFAEELEZAFE
BEHIRELHRERZRBERER R
BERBER REIBRFEIeEA SR
BEXMZHE-

At BB E

HtemEE(BREZREMEMNE
F—REAEARER BN —KREER
AR B E RN A B SRR
IR ) B R BB R IR S AT

o

fein



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok U 25 % B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less

all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the

asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative for the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the

lease at the inception of the lease.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and

accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise except for:

e  exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies

below); and

e  exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to

profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees of the Group and other

eligible participants

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits (accumulated

losses).

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment in
relation to the Group's available-for-sale investments in unlisted equity
securities, the Group takes into consideration of the decline in market
values of the properties held by its investees. Judgment is required when
determining whether it is necessary to make any impairment on the
investment cost in these available-for-sale investments by taking into
consideration of the decline in market values of the properties held by
the investees over the respective costs. Where the market price of the
properties declines more than expected, a further impairment loss may

arise.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of relevant available-
for-sale investments is approximately HK$31,638,000 (2012:
HK$63,877,000). The directors performed impairment assessment
of the Group's available-for-sale investments and impairment loss of
HK$32,239,000 (2012: HK$Nil) was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined with reference to the fair value of the property, plant
and equipment less costs to sell or the value-in-use calculations. An
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is approximately HK$576,679,000 (2012:
HK$2,202,407,000) (net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss of approximately HK$336,860,000 (2012: HK$556,506,000)).

The directors performed impairment assessment of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and an impairment loss of
HK$50,407,000 (2012: HK$44,183,000) was recognised in profit or

loss during the year.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)
Depreciation of hotel properties

The Group’s carrying amount of hotel properties as at 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$522,284,000 (2012: HK$2,057,167,000).
The Group depreciates the hotel properties on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of their remaining unexpired terms of the leases and
2.5% per annum. The useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive economic benefits from the
use of the Group's hotel properties. During the year, the useful lives
of the hotel properties have been reviewed and these estimates are
considered to be appropriate. Included in the above amount is a hotel
property with a carrying amount of approximately HK$215,974,000
(2012: HK$217,017,000) of which the useful life is determined to be
the shorter of 2.5% annum and the unexpired terms of the leases. A
subsidiary of the Company has been granted the right to operate and
manage the hotel in Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") for a period from January 1987 to January 2017, and subject to
certain conditions to be fulfilled by the subsidiary, the operating period
may be extended for a further period of 20 years. Should the conditions
not be fulfilled, the depreciation period of the hotel properties would
be adjusted and up to January 2017 only. When estimating the useful
life of this hotel, it is assumed that the right to operate and manage the

hotel can be extended for a further period of 20 years.

Impairment loss on other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the other
receivables. Appropriate impairment for estimated irrecoverable
amount is recognised in profit and loss when there is objective evidence

that the amount is not recoverable.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Impairment loss on other receivables (Continued)

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts is
required, the Group takes into consideration the aged status and
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for the other
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognised on
the difference between the carrying amount of other receivables
and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted
using the original effective interest rate. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of other
receivables net of accumulated impairment loss is HK$94,459,000
(2012: HK$14,426,000) (net of impairment loss of approximately
HK$7,871,000 (2012: HK$11,526,000)).

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for

financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The valuation committee works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports
the findings to the board of directors of the Company every quarter
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
business activities that the segment carried out. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated

in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under

HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Hotel operations — hotel accommodation, food and banquet

operations

2. Securities trading — trading of equity securities

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. A FHBAEREZEERR
(CONTINUED) (&)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes AL EEFERGERRF (5)
(Continued)
The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are NEE EER A B A BRI FELA AT B R T
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of SEBRAER 2 MERE  HFte T
certain types of financial instruments. Notes 16 and 36c provide SR T AZ N FEME 16 R36cHE it
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key AREBETREERABEATEEREA
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various assets ZIEERE WASEREEREZ2FH
and liabilities. BH} e
TURNOVER 5. BX#
Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration received or EEBENFABR M EBOIMNERE P 2
receivable from outside customers, net of discounts and sales-related BRAFEBERTNREEE@ENIE A&
taxes during the year. An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year ERAREE 2 EEBANTMOT
is as follows:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T——F
FET FHET

Hotel operations B JE A 447,220 429,466
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 7EEH

MAATRATEE (DEBLEREE)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

6. 7HEER &\

Pk L ONSE S

AT RASBBRARRERATRE REE
DERZ T

BE_Z-—=51+t-A=t—-HLEE

Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERE BEEE e
FET FTHET FRT

TURNOVER EE S 447,220 - 447,220
RESULTS ES
Amount excluding impairment &% (TNBRIEWE  #eE &

loss recognised in respect of R EERRERRE)

property, plant and equipment (86,870) 239 (86,631)
Impairment loss recognised in LE Y YN g

respect of property, B R E e

plant and equipment (50,407) - (50,407)
Gain on deemed disposal of BlERE —SHE QR Z S

a subsidiary 781,773 - 781,773
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries W& @ A7 > &8 (20,059) - (20,059)
Segment profit pal bk 624,437 239 624,676
Interest income FEWA 1,829
Share of result of an associate e —REEE R A EMA (1,223)
Share of result of a joint venture {5 —FR A& A Al E4E (3.074)
Impairment loss recognised in Hih EE 2 B R EERE

respect of other assets (11,160)
Gain on disposal of a HE—REE QR ZWE

joint venture 5,166
Reversal of impairment losses on  EUL—R A& &R AIFIEZ

amount due from a VEREY SRR

joint venture 7,089
Decrease in fair value of wEMFE 2 N EEERD

investment properties (30,108)
Fair value gain on derivative TEemIT A A FEEYKR

financial instrument 650
Finance costs BLE KA (32,283)
Central administrative costs and A1 R 7T XA 2K}z

unallocated corporate expenses AR EEEF X (59,378)
Profit before taxation B 75 Bl A1 502,184

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

9 6 Annual Report 2013
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7EER &
Segment revenues and results (Continued) PEWARES (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_T——F+-A=1t—HILFE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R EFEHEE RA
FHT FHIT FHT
TURNOVER =E £ 429,466 - 429,466
RESULTS ES3
Amount excluding impairment &8 (TeiEEnETEE
loss recognised in respect of INOYEE XY )4
other intangible assets and S O R (i i )
property, plant and equipment (59,620) 1,845 (57,775)
Impairment loss recognised in HtEEEENRYE
respect of other intangible eSS Ty i
assets and property, plant and PR EER
equipment (78,264) - (78,264)
Segment (loss) profit D48 (B8R & F (137,884) 1,845 (136,039)
Interest income FEHA 194
Share of result of an associate FE(L—REE S N R EE (2,100)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 4 & [ B A &) 2 Uiz 2,216
Increase in fair value of WEYEZ AN EEBEEN
investment properties 9,971
Fair value gain on derivative EeBMIAZ AFEAEKS
financial instrument 128
Finance costs & B AN (18,602)
Central administrative costs R TR
and unallocated corporate EOMA¥EY
expenses (3,880)
Loss before taxation BRI E 1R (148,112)
R VS i o BB PR A ]
2013 4% 97
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit or loss
represents the profit or loss from each segment without allocation of
central administrative costs, directors’ salaries, interest income, finance
costs, (loss) gain on disposals of subsidiaries, gain on disposal of a joint
venture, certain impairment losses, change in fair value of investment
properties, share of result of an associate, share of result of a joint
venture, reversal of impairment losses on amount due from a joint
venture and fair value gain on derivative financial instrument. There
was asymmetrical allocation to operating segments because the Group
allocated borrowings to operating segments without allocating the
related finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segment:

6.
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2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—_F
FERT FHET

Segment assets THEE
Hotel operations IR 1,676,523 2,328,221
Securities trading BEEE 535 290
Total segment assets NEEERE 1,677,058 2,328,511
Investment properties A 299,000 324,000
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 31,638 63,877
Interest in an associate R—REERE 2 269,627 4
Interests in joint ventures REE QA ZER - 17,050
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NS 427,273 364,066
Other unallocated assets EfRpBEEE 25,364 32,634
2,729,960 3,130,142
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBELEZEE 837,306 =
Consolidated assets HRABE 3,567,266 3,130,142

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7 EER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEERERE(H)
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —TE——fF
FET FHT
Segment liabilities PEAE
Hotel operations B JE A 557,845 1,019,847
Securities trading BHEE - 68
Total segment liabilities NERGRR 557,845 1,019,915
Tax liabilities MIEBE 77,454 11,571
Deferred taxation EET IR 60,804 173,754
Other unallocated liabilities Bk pBEEE 16,626 35,144
712,729 1,240,384
Liabilities associated with assets EABARELEZ
classified as held for sale BENMBECBE 635,944 -
Consolidated liabilities REAafE 1,348,673 1,240,384

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than assets

REEDBRAMBESBIERRIE

s MBREHSNREKREN HE

=
relating to investment properties, interest in an associate, interests KEME RN —REE QAR 2w
in joint ventures, available-for-sale investments, bank balances REE QA AR ERE -

and cash and other unallocated assets; and

IRITAE R IR & A R E M R 9 B

ERBEZEERIN: &

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than s MMEBEHUESIRELEN  HH
liabilities relating to current and deferred tax liabilities and other BIEA KR AE FE TE B (5 R B bR 2 B

unallocated liabilities.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. pHEER &\
Other segment information Hih o BE R
2013 —E—=F
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BERE BEEE RAE REAE
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Amounts included in the measure of 5t & 2 8% 5 E5 18 Y
segment profit or loss or DEEERTAZRK
segment assets:
Increase in fair value of FIEEERENTEE
investments held for trading 0 - 245 - 245
Addition to non-current assets FER B & E I 0 62,473 - - 62,473
Depreciation of property, M ERERZENE
plant and equipment 90,607 - 5,252 95,859
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HER
plant and equipment R EE 5,742 - - 5,742
2012 —E—CF
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEGE HHEE R REaE
FHT FHET FET FHT
Amounts included in the measure of 5t = 7 48)& 7| sk B 185k
segment profit or loss or DEEER AZFIEA
segment assets:
Increase in fair value of FIEEBERAEATER
investments held for trading N - 1,849 - 1,849
Amortisation of other HinEm B E 2 &
intangible assets 4,937 - - 4937
Addition to non-current assets IERENE LN 199,722 - - 199,722
Depreciation of property, W% ERERZENE
plant and equipment 73,083 - 3,721 76,804
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE #ERk
plant and equipment HEZEE 26,251 = = 26,251
Addition to non-current assets include property, plant and equipment REBEE-E—=FF=_FT——F+-A

during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. =+—RIEFE FERDEELEIMBED

PN LR

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is

presented based on the location of services provided in respect of hotel

6.

/'\;k ﬁ*sl_ (&)
b 15 &

BERAAEERBIES ZWAERT
RIRHIRIS P (BUEEREMS )5

operations: N
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E——fF
Tz FitT
Hong Kong B 239,559 171,881
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERE) 207,661 257,585
447,220 429,466

The information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented

based on the geographic location of the assets as follows:

BRAKEIRBEEZERIREEM
FEHb [ 517K -

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-=F —E——F
FHExT FHT
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TNEERE) 1,111,411 1,661,092
Hong Kong B 34,415 867,371
Others HAith - 66,322
1,145,826 2,594,785

Note:  Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, MizE: JERBEETRREAIHDLERE &

amount due from an associate and pledged bank deposits.

W — KRB &N B RIE R EEIRRITE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 2EESR (®)
Information about major customers and services ERXEEFRBRBEZEHR
There is no revenue from any single external customers that contributed REEZT—=FR=_FT—Z=-F+=A
over 10% on the total sales of the Group during the years ended 31 =+—HIFE WHEREEE I
December 2013 and 2012. B ZWAEAREE BHERERI0% °
No analysis of the Group's revenue from its major services and security WEZIIANEEREHEFERG RES
trading is presented as no discrete financial information is prepared BB ZWAD  RERIW BRI SR
based on this analysis and the cost to develop it would be excessive. EENBER MEREZKAKESR
=,
7. INTEREST INCOME 7. FEWA
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB—=F —E——fF
FET FAT
Interest income on: JRE TFIIEEB 2 BWA
Bank deposits RITERK 1,829 194
8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HA -KhzmRER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-=F —E——F
FERT FHET
An analysis of the Group's other income, REEZ AUA - Y &
gains and losses is as follows: BEAINET
Increase in fair value of investments BIEEBERE 2 A FEMEEM
held for trading 245 1,849
Loss on disposal of investments held HERIEEERE 2 EE
for trading (162) -
Fair value gain on derivative TEemIT Az AFEEKE
financial instrument 650 128
Impairment loss recognised in Hth fE W R R 2 B HERR B &5 18
respect of other receivables (7,871) (11,526)
Exchange gain PE 5 i o 8,636 16
Sundry income MIBUA 3,935 3,403
5,433 (6,130)

1 2 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
O Annual Report 2013
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FINANCE COSTS 9. RMEMRA
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —ET——fF
F#&xT FHIT
Interest on borrowings wholly ARAFREHEEZEBEZAE
repayable within five years 32,083 23,828
Loan facilities fee EXRMEER 200 =
Total finance costs #EhE A AR 32,283 23,828
Less: amounts capitalised B BB ZRIE - (5,226)
32,283 18,602
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBEADE R (B1])
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-=F :%—:¢
Profit (loss) before taxation has been BRE AN (E18) EHBR T 5518 :
arrived at after charging:
Depreciation of property, M BRREEZTE
plant and equipment 95,859 76,804
Amortisation of other intangible assets H & B 2 - 4,937
Total depreciation and amortisation e LR 95,859 81,741
Auditor’s remuneration = A B & 3,936 4,001
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ~ EFER AN H 2 FEK A 40,728 44,166
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Hih R R 2 ERERRERE
other receivables 7,871 11,526
Minimum lease payments paid in respect of EfHEWE 2 HIEHEH
rented premises 65,859 64,407
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BB A (BIEEEME) 155,801 144,084
and after crediting: WEEA:
Gross rental income from shops in NRNBEMFEANZBREZ
hotel properties less negligible outgoings T & YA 4R B8R AT 7288 =2 i
(included in turnover) (BEstAEX%R) 24,092 23,475
FERE WG ) 2 IR A B 28 ]
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NESRTHEAEMERES
EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID FiNES
EMPLOYEES
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the directors are as REBSNTEEEZMEFBOT:
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z—=Ff+=-A=+—BLFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREAGE
e FERHEHMEA = B
FTER FTET FTEx FTEx
Executive directors: WiTEE:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit REG K HE - - - -
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRIt 240 1,860 15 2,115

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis ~ FRE#E 54 - - - -

Independent non-executive BUFRTES:

directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BEUEE 60 - - 60
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % Bl Lk A 60 - - 60
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEEBRAE 60 - - 60

420 1,860 15 2,295

1 O 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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11. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

E_g-=Ft=A=t-

BIEEE

MNEEBRTHREABMERES

EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID FMES (&)
EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_Z——_F+_A=+T—HLFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek RAREF
e H A 43 IR B
FH&T FH&T FH&T FH&T
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit ORGEAE = - - -
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BRIt 240 1,860 14 2,114
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BREHEEE - - - -
Independent non-executive BUIFNITES:
directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BRIKE 60 - - 60
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEFE 60 - - 60
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEBEE 60 - - 60
420 1,860 14 2,294

* Ms. Chan Ling, Eva is also the chief executive of the Company and her

emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by

her as the chief executive.

*

BRI L LI RARRITIRAER MER
EXHEZHE BEEERTRER

Rt

BR% <z B -

R 42 IR AT PR A ]

2013 4E 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11.
EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

Neither the directors nor chief executive waived any emoluments for

both years.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one

was director and the chief executive of the Company whose emolument

is included in the disclosures above for both years.

Except the director and chief executive as disclosed above, the

emoluments of the remaining four highest paid individuals were as

BEERTHAEMNES R RS
HFNER (@)

R E S - BB A E R AT AREN
REMME -

AEFBRfURSHFMALH —LAER
AEERTHAR R MIEFE 3
BEfELEXHE-

B EXFTR R 2 EE RITRAAEIN A&
ERMIEFES N TR TOLREHMA

follows for both years: T2 MEFFIBER T
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —F——F
FHExT T
Salaries and other benefits Fre kEART 8,485 6,625
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAE FIET B 3R 92 89
8,577 6,714
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—_fF

Their emoluments were within AT AREE AR :
the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 23,500,000/ 7T - 1
Over HK$3,500,000 3,500,000 7T A 1 -

1 O 6 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok o U 25 % B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. REHMAX

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E——F
F#&xT FHIT
Current tax: BVEATR 1A -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMEH (4,505) (4,035)
Capital gain tax BARWETIE (66,744) =
Underprovision in prior years MAFERETE (173) (1,002)

Deferred tax (note 31): EFERIA (PFEE31)
Current year KEE 12,336 4,104
Income tax expense FriS i F (59,086) (933)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is recognised based on management'’s best
estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for
the full financial year. The estimated average annual tax rate used is

16.5% for both periods under review.

People’s Republic of China (“PRC") enterprise income tax is calculated
at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC. Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is
recognised based on management'’s best estimate of the weighted

average annual income tax rate expected for the full financial year.

BTG T THAR R B 12 I8 31 78 EA B (R B Bk
FEZMETFHEFREHE 2 REMET
FERR o I AR (B B HRRE AT R A 2 (st 715
2ERER16.5% °

REARKME (THE])EEMERTD
BIREP RBRER MR 2 EBRR KRG
H-REMBIAERES 2 HBRIREE
BEEHEMEEAMRFEEZ NEFEE2F
FIIS B R 2 S fE A FTHHERR -

FH R I 4 JBEAT RO )
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B £ ==

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

13.

108

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss) before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

—=F+-A=+—HILEE

T

12. Fi88MAxX (&)

AREZZBIAM ERE B
BmARTZBRBANE (BER)ETHRL

5 N B At A T W

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —F—_fF
FTHET FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BE ARSI (E5E) 502,184 (148,112)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% X AN TS R16.5%:1 & 2 Hi 18 82,860 (24,438)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 72 & & Ji& &k &% ia FI| B A~ 7] 30060 2
in determining taxable profit Xz RET e 40,847 45,907
Tax effect of income that is not taxable in TS TE JE AR A S BB 7R R T 2
determining taxable profit WAZ B E (20,548) (31,945)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZREER 2 MBHE 9,628 10,214
Tax effect of share of result of an associate (G —REtE R A HE 2 HE & 202 347
Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture E{f—REE AR EBEZHBETE 507 =
Tax effect of capital gain on deemed RIELE—RHMB AR 2 EA M=
disposal of a subsidiary HERTE16. 5% E 2 M2
at applicable tax rate of 16.5% (128,993) -
Capital gain tax on gain on RIELE—FRHMBARIZ K2
deemed disposal of a subsidiary B AR = T IE 66,744 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE A RDERE R E 2 B A Al
operating in other jurisdictions TRBE 2 & 7,647 (600)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 173 1,002
Others Hith 19 446
Taxation for the year REZ 2B 59,086 933
DIVIDEND 13. R E
No dividend was paid or proposed during 2013, nor has any dividend RZZE—=FHErHERRTRE
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil). i B 2 ¥ B 45 R DA SR IR 2 S IR < A frT AR
B(ZB——F &)

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 14. 8RER (BH8)
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to the RARHEANEEEREARRERN (EB)
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TR TSR E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T——F
FE&T FHIT
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of BiestEERERET (FE) 2
the Company for the purpose of RRREB AEMERT (BE)
381,966 (143,188)

basic earnings (loss) per share

Number of shares

igvg 4=
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Number of ordinary shares for At —=FRk=_%F—=%
the purpose of basic earnings (loss) BEREXRAM (BE)Z
per share for 2013 and 2012 EgiliiE g=! 657,675,872 657,675,872
There was no potential ordinary share outstanding during the year RBZE_ZE—=F+"A=+—HILF
ended 31 December 2013. B BMERTERELEL AR

SR H AT LA 7
‘ Emgéﬁ 109
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. M5 - BB RRE

Hotel Office
property equipment
Hotel under Furniture Leasehold Motor and
properties  construction and fixtures  improvements vehicles machinery Vessels Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Note (a)
HAERER
BENE  EREENE GRRZE AENEEE RE B e &it
TET TE7x TAT TET TE7x TAT TET TET
Htik@)
cost HA
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-—-F-f-H 1,568,184 660,089 40,622 327,224 6,662 52,636 2,087 2,657,504
Currency realignment BEAR 2,559 - 29 15 4 367 = 2,974
Additions HE = 162,331 1,826 33,505 - 2,060 - 199,722
Disposals HE - - (1,090 (129873) 3727) (449) - (135,139)
Transferred from assets held-forsale  BEER{FHELE - - - - - = 33,852 33,852
Transfer of hotel property under ~ EREREEN¥Z
construction to hotel properties BEENE 822,420 (822,420) = = = = = =
At 31 December 2012 RZF--F
+-A=+-A 2,393,163 = 41,387 230,871 2,939 54,614 35939 2,758913
Currency realignment EEEE 47639 - 79 4,478 116 1227 = 54,179
Additions HE 55814 - 1,991 4143 336 189 - 62,473
Disposals HE (69,689) = (155) (24,783) (358) (1,826) (380) (97,191)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR (907,780) = (6,531) (102,932) (1,203) (19,092) = (1,037,538)
Transferred to assets held-forsale BB EHFHELE (827,235) - (20) - - @) = (827,297)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F
+-A=t+-H 691,912 - 37,391 m.77 1,830 35,070 35,559 913,539
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 7% R &
At 1 January 2012 W-E-—f-f-H 291,19 = 27,295 152,580 3733 43,095 2,087 519,986
Currency realignment BERE 647 - 25 12 3 128 - 815
Provided for the year rEERE 44,153 - 3,158 25212 560 1737 1984 76,804
Impairment loss recognised REGHAREER
in profit or loss - - - 44183 - - - 44183
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (920) (83,224) (2,247) (16) - (86,407)
Transferred from asset held-forsale ~ EEEH{FHELE - - - - - - 1,125 1,125
At 31 December 2012 R=F-=F
+-A=+-A 335,99 = 29,558 138,763 2,049 44,944 519 556,506
Currency realignment BEAR 13329 = 444 3,402 101 1,030 = 18,306
Provided for the year REERRE 77,889 - 2878 9,552 288 939 4313 95,859
Impairment loss recognised! REGRARERR
in profit or loss 49271 - - - - 1,136 - 50,407
Eliminated on disposals HERMR (38,174) - (89) (27,983) (358) (1,659) (122) (68,385)
Eliminated on disposals of HERER AR
subsidiaries (251,538) - (877) (27,980) (756) (17,526) - (298,677)
Transferred o asset held-for-sale ~ EEZF{EHEELE (17,145) - (4) - - () - (17,156)
At 31 December 2013
169,628 - 31,910 95,754 1324 28,857 9,387 336,860
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 RZB-Z%
+=A=t+-H 522,284 = 5481 16,023 506 6,213 26,172 576,679
At 31 December 2012 R-F-—%
+-A=+-A 2,057,167 = 11,829 92,108 890 9,670 30,743 2,202,407

110
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuep) 15, 3 - #EF R 54 (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on LA EWD3E  H3R RERBIE B o R EL
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum, after taking into TFEIREER  REGIEEL T Y F R
account of their estimate residual value. =0
Hotel properties (comprising ~ Over the shorter of the lease terms of B % HHEFH35F E40F
land and buildings) 35 to 40 years and 2.5% (BiELH & %2.5% (ARG &
BF) RE)
Furniture and fixtures 10% —20% FMREE 10% —20%
Leasehold improvements 10% — 20% or the term of the lease, THEWERE  10%—20%%KHAEFH
if shorter (AEREHERLE)
Motor vehicles 8.33% —20% _E 8.33%—20%
Office equipment and 20% WAEHRER 20%
machinery 2%
Vessels 12% e 12%
An analysis of the properties of the Group (other than the properties REBRESERPERSIFBEZWE
amounting to HK$98,006,000 (2012: HK$122,072,000) set out in (c) (R R 32 (c)& 71| 298,006,000/ 7T (==
below) held at the end of the reporting period is as follows: — Z 4 :122,072,000%5 T) W1 E BRI 5
e
Hotel properties
SEIEYHE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E——F
FET FET
Medium term leases in Hong Kong (note a) MR & & 2R 4 (M 5Ea) 810,140 871,134
Medium term leases in the PRC (notes b) ARz R EIARA) (H3Eb) 434,131 1,063,961
1,244,271 1,935,095

FH R I 4 JBEAT RO )
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

112

Included in hotel properties at the end of the reporting period
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$810,140,000 (2012: HK$871,134,000) situated in Tai Kok Tsui,
Hong Kong. The hotel property has commenced business in July
2012.

On 5 November 2013, the Group has entered into an agreement with
an independent third party for the sale of its 60% of its equity interest
in and corresponding shareholder’s loan due by More Star Limited
("More Star”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which holds
the ownership of the hotel property. The carrying amount of the hotel
property of approximately HK$810,140,000 has been classified to
assets held for sale at the end of the reporting period.

Included in the hotel properties held under medium term leases in the
PRC of approximately HK$434,131,000 (2012: HK$1,063,961,000)
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$215,974,000 (2012: HK$217,017,000) of which a subsidiary of
the Company has been granted the right to operate and manage
the hotel in Guangzhou, the PRC for a period from January 1987 to
January 2017, and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the
subsidiary, the operating period may be extended for a further period
of 20 years.

Included in hotel properties at the end of the reporting period is a
hotel property with a carrying value of approximately HK$98,006,000
(2012: HK$122,072,000) situated in Luoyang, the PRC in which
the Group holds the property right. The land use rights of the hotel
property is currently held by Luoyang Power Supply Bureau, a non-
controlling shareholder of the subsidiary holding the hotel property.
Pursuant to a land use rights agreement entered into between
Luoyang Power Supply Bureau and the subsidiary on 15 April 1999
(before the Group acquired the said subsidiary in 2004), Luoyang
Power Supply Bureau agreed to permit the said subsidiary to use
the land upon which the hotel property is now situated for a term
commencing from April 1999 to April 2049 for hotel use.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

15. W% BB RRE (@)

e

(a)

ERPERIG ZBEMEBRIE— BN
RE B K AME AR E49810,140,00078
T (=ZZ—=%:871,134,000/%7t) &
BIEME - ZBEMER—T——_F+
ARREEETR-

RZT—=F+—HAAH AEEHE—
BB =FEI M HE WEEER
More Star Limited ([ More Star | * 285
Bz 2EWBRA - FHEHEMSE
BE) 2 2 EP60% M A = [ HARIE4E
RZBERER S EREESTEL
810,140,000/ 7T B 72 2 3R HA 4 R I5 57
HERELEAE-

RAEBENLNPBHBAORE ZH
434,131,000 (=T — =4
1,063,961,0007% 7T ) /B J5 ¥ % B 1E —
FEBR H 1 49215,974,0008 . ( = &
— % :217,017,000/% 7T) 2 BED
¥ MAR R ZME A BER TR
R BIEMN T ZBE 2 8% R E B
FHH-—NANEE—ABRE=T—+
F— AL WM B R BERE TIEE
AR — PIER =+ F o

AEBEREHRPE RGN EER 2
S EBIE— AR R BE BT R
M {E%4798,006,000/ 7T (=T — =4 :
122,072,000/ 7)) 2 BIE¥% - 2B &
MEZ T FERERRAITEZB/E
W22 WA Bz FETE AR AR BB B T
BEBIFA - REBREMEER KM
BRABEIR—AANEMNA+RER (BRA
EEE-_STMFEWREZNTEARR)
RN 2 T HFRE R REMEER
B = E At B A B E A EE D
¥R i FHEA—ANNE
MARE=ZTMAFMA L UBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

During the year, due to the continuously unsatisfactory result of a
budget hotel, the Group has fully written-off the carrying values of
leasehold improvements of approximately HK$6,271,000 and office
equipment of approximately HK$1,136,000 in relation to the budget
hotel, and therefore impairment loss of approximately HK$7,407,000

has been recognised in profit or loss.

Besides, the directors of the Company have also reviewed the
recoverability of the carrying amount of the Group's certain hotel
properties (other than budget hotel disclosed above) with reference
to their fair values at 31 December 2013, which have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Asset Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in relevant location. The valuation was arrived at
the comparison method based on market observable transactions of
similar properties and adjusts to reflect the conditions and locations of
the subject properties (Note). Impairment loss of HK$43,000,000 has
been recognised in respect of a hotel property of the Group in the PRC.
No impairment loss was recognised in relation to the impairment testing
carried out for the certain other hotel properties of the Group as their
fair values determined in this manner were estimated to be higher than

their carrying amounts.

15. W% - BB RRE (@)

RAFE ARE-—KELNEEEESE
RANIBAE - A E 2 HM A s B R
B 5 496,271,000/ T 2 THE M FE R
#71,136,000/8 70 2 #+ A ZE 284 2 BRTEIME
A B 5 18 55 e SRR (B S $8.497,407,00078

JL °

BN AATEECLBAEEE THEE
W (XTI ER 2 BT ERIN) R
—T-=H+-_A=+—AZAV¥EE"
RET RSB E YR 2 R E SR8 2 A Uk E 2
B BBRATEEEHEAEE T EHE
ZENABEEEGEMTRELETE
BERERARRZBBTZEEET +
HEBETEBEBRER AT RE SRS
Eee8 BAEEER SANEGTE
MR RAUYEBE KB - GRME
THEALEBCRER  hBURRERELUY
EZABREMBR S WL AR LR
BEMEZRARME (K ANEE
EREAI AT B2 BE Y ERRREEE
43,000,000/ 7T - R AN SR B 25 T E AR
IEMEAL A R EE 2 A EEGT =R
HIEHE MAEELERZEHEDE
BT 2 R BB S IR R (B 5 4

TR ¥ 5 o IR PR A ]
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contnuep) 15, 3 - #EF R 584 (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, in view that some of
the budget hotels were making recurring losses, and were projected
to incur losses in future periods, and with the weakening Chinese
economy, the directors had reviewed the recoverability of the carrying
amounts of the Group's leasehold improvements in respect of hotel
properties under operating leases amounting to HK$50,548,000
and the related operating rights amounting to HK$34,081,000. The
recoverable amounts of the assets and liabilities of the cash generating
units (“CGUs") which were represented by each of the budget hotels
had been determined on the basis of the value in use of each of the
CGUs. The discount rate in measuring the amounts of value in use
was 14%. The directors determined that the carrying amounts of
certain of the budget hotel CGUs exceeded their recoverable amounts.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately HK$44,183,000 was
recognised in respect of leasehold improvements and approximately

HK$34,081,000 in respect of operating rights of the CGUs.

Note: Under the comparison method, transacted prices (prices realised)
or, if not available, asked prices (market prices) of comparable
properties is made. Comparable properties of similar size, character
and location are analysed and adjustments are made to take account
of the respective advantages and disadvantages of each property,
and also the possible outcome of the negotiation from asked prices
to transacted prices, in order to arrive at a reasonable comparison of
capital values.

1 1 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013

REBE-_ZE——F+-A=+—HIEF
[E BRI A EEE R S B A E
1B M TEET AR SR HA R G B & 1B - 0
Bl 55 EEE N 2MPERBRF
AEEREERETBENEZTHED
FERE MR EE S B R2850,548,000
77T 534,081,000/ 7T < BRTE & %8 2 FI 4
EREE - SEBIAEMRERZREEE
B ([(HeELEBU)EERBBEZA
WEeEDBESREEFEN 2 FH
BEET FEERAEESBEINAXE
14% - ERZEHREE THEEABERSE
FBEESERE AR RE S E
I AEEERZSRSEAENZHE
PR RIS ERERREBED L
44,183,000/ 7T & 734,081,000/ 7T, ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REWMHE

HK$'000
FHT
FAIR VALUE AEEE
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F—F—H 271,400
Currency realignment B EFE 1,573
Additions nE 41,056
Increase in fair value recognised in the profit or loss MR IEzE MR 2 A B E L N 9,971
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+=-HA=+—H 324,000
Currency realignment BEFE 5,108
Decrease in fair value recognised in the profit or loss A EzEHER 2 A FEE R > (30,108)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=A=+—H 299,000
The fair value at 31 December 2013 and 2012 has been arrived RZE—=FR=_F——F+-A=+—

at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Norton
Appraisals Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
using the comparison approach which considers the relevant market
comparables as available in the locality as at the date of valuation and
also consider its term of operation up to 15 October 2023. There has

been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

The Group's investment properties represent a completed complex for
commercial use, which is situated on medium-term land use right in
the PRC. The Group had intended to hold the property interest held
under operating lease to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Accordingly, the property interest held under operating lease is
measured using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for

as investment properties.

BZATEESHEASELEREZS
NAEBRBEGEMEXERTHEERA

Al ([ EHERTE DRz BETZEE
BT THERFEABESIEMEES
B -MAEEENR O MATEERM
EEUMEEE LR - GERGEER
LEBURES - L BUAE B E MG E B H
P13 2 ABRATIIS A & L R AR - Wit &
CTECFTATRAZEEFHF
R (B 77 025 I 4

I]

AEBZREMFIEC ERZIBBEAKR
B DR TE P E R RS
BB AR ERERA Y E R FHE
EIVES R REREERE - Bt R
REMERBZME RS TIERAFERE
WA E WD BRARIBRENE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE — T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. REWZE (&)

The following table gives information about how the fair value of
the investment properties is determined (in particular, the valuation

techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into

TREJBRENMELATEBELETENE
(LERAFEAGETERBAZE) - U
RZBAFEEFTERABRBRZATRE

BE DR FEEFEZATEERER

(E—ZE=8) -

which the fair value measurement is categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurement is

observable.

Relationship of unobservable

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value

EAEEBREAARE
ATLEEER HEAEREEAAE EREEBEAARE AT ERC R
Level 3 Comparison approach Adjusting factors: A slight increase in the adjusting
E=H HEE REE: factor on location meter wil
decrease significantly the fair value.
The key inputs are: (a)  ranging from 20% to 50% B REAREHEM LA
Price per square metre on location; SERATREARHD
FTEHABER: @ HAELE NT
BEHKRERE 20%Z50% A slight increase in the adjusting
factor on residual operating period
Adjusting factors on location and (b)  58% on residual will decrease significantly the fair
residual operating period operating period value.
B RRIRE S 7 ARER (b) BHEFBEES  58% eGSR REE N LT

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment property, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.
At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted
prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the board of directors of

the Group.

1 1 6 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties is

disclosed above.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The resulting decrease in fair value of the investment properties of
approximately HK$30,108,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Increase in 2012: HK$9,971,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

16. REWE (&)
AEEBEFERGERRF (8)

ERETAEERENE A FEERMA
BETDERBABEZER BN EXE

=

FA BESEAE=FHBEPELZE

HMHELBE-_Z—=F+=-A=+—
BEFEZREDELAFEBERID
30,108,000 L (=T — ZF 3 N :
9,971,000/ 7T ) E RN E= R ©

17. R—XBE LT 2R

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E——F
FBT T
Cost of unlisted investment in an associate ~ R —XK#& A a2 3E E IR E KA
Unlisted investments (note a) JELEWIRE (MiEa) 270,850 4
Share of post-acquisition losses FEAG W 1% 548 (1,223) =
269,627 4
Amount due from an associate (note c) FE U — KB & A R FRIE (M aEc) - 41,085
Less: Impairment losses on amount due RN — KBS R B2
from an associate EEE - (7,089)
Share of post-acquisition losses FE(R BRI E KA 2 WHE R BB
that are in excess of
the cost of investment - (2,100)
- 31,896

SR 11 L2

2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE — T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group's associate as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

are as follows:

17. R—ZFREBEQAT 2R (8
REB ZHENAN _TE—=ZFK_F
A

——F+=

=t—BZHBWT:

Issued and Proportion of Proportion of
Form of Place of paid up issued capital held voting rights held Principal
Name of associate business structure incorporation share capital by the Group by the Group activities
BRTR
BENFER EBRRTR TR AR 4 2 BRBA AEEREZBRMEANE ARERACREELE  FEEY
‘000 2013 2012 2013 2012
fr =-B-z§ - ZB-Zf CT-CZf
Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd. Limited liability company ~ PRC US$86,000 17.7% 88.2% 12.1% 88.2%  Hotel operation
("Rosedale Beijing"”) (Note a) (Note a)
HRHBEEEREAAR ARERAA k! 86,0005 17.7% 88.2% 17.7% 882% EEAE
(ExmEl) GED) (Hfita)
Business Action Holdings Limited ~ Limited liability company  British Virgin Islands US$1 - 45% - 45%  Investment holding
("Business Action”) (Note b) (Note b)
Business Action Holdings Limited ~ ERET AR RBERRES (E - 45% - 45%  RERR
(I'Business Action ] ) GELY (GEL)
Notes: B :
a.  As set out in note 37b, the Group holds 17.7% investment in a. MAMEE370FTE  MIRIEL EAEE 2

118

Rosedale Beijing (through the holding of approximately 88.7% equity
interest in DS Eastin Limited, which in turn holds 20% equity interest
in Rosedale Beijing) following a deemed disposal of the Group's
interest, which the deemed disposal was completed on 29 November
2013.

Rosedale Beijing ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and becomes
an associate of the Group, which the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over Rosedale Beijing because it has the power
to appoint one out of five directors of that company under the
shareholders’ agreement.

Rosedale Beijing is strategic to the Group as it operates in hotel
business in Beijing and enables the Group to keep exposure to this
market through local expertise.

The recognition of the Group’s interest in Rosedale Beijing is initially
measured at its fair value, which is determined with reference to the
total consideration paid by the Investor (as defined in note 37b) for
the capital contribution to Rosedale Beijing and net compensation
amount required to be paid to the Group.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

B (BN —_ZE—=%+—A=t+h
A& AEEFELLRHEZ
17.7%%& (BRFERGRSTIRES
FRABEI#4I88.7 %A - M ISR 77
HEBRARFEHILRIEB20% KA
W) °

EFCHETBERAEE ZHBATR - I
RAREEZHBERNR AR AEERF
BREBERRBAZEILRHELRE
EEP % wALEALHEILRIA
BIIEEATES -

AL ROIRB A L RS IR 2755 - 2
AREFETHEILFIAB Y Eih 2 B2
Hzmis it RIBEAEEN A
BREE(EA

AEBENIEFIAB 2 st 2 FER I
RAFBEFE MATFEEN2RZ
KEE (EFE RWE37b) stmdb 3
BHERARNANEEX N ZHEFRE
N2 BAREBERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 i EZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

b. On 28 January 2013, Venture Rainbow Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, acquired an additional 5% equity interest
or 50 shares of par value of US$1 each in the issued share capital of
Business Action, an associate of the Group, and a shareholder’s loan
of HK$5,800,000 at a cash consideration of HK$5,800,000 from a
non-controlling shareholder of Business Action. Further shareholder
loan of approximately HK$11,115,000 was made to Business Action
on the same date. Accordingly, the Group's equity interest in Business
Action increased from 45% to 50%. Pursuant to the shareholder
agreement relating to Business Actions and its subsidiaries, the Group
is able to exercise joint control on Business Action as all of the strategic
financial and operating decisions require unanimous consent of the
Group and the other shareholder. The investment cost of HK$4,000
in Business Action was re-classified from interest in an associate to
interests in joint ventures accordingly (Note 18a).

c.  The amount represents advance to Business Action which is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and classified as non-current asset
at the year ended 31 December 2012. The amount due from an
associate was reclassified as amount due from a joint venture after the
Group is able to exercise the joint control over Business Action (Note
b).

The summarised financial information below represents amounts

shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance

17. R—ZFRBE QT 2R (8

BeE: ()

b. RZE—=F—HZ+N\B Xx&EE2
& Bff /& A & Venture Rainbow Limitedf/¢
7N £ [@]H 4 X A Business Action— % JE
122 7% % 3R Uk B Business Action B 317 %
AR 2 BBANS % AR A 225 3R S0R% A AR
E13E 7T 2 I fn B A ER & 3X5,800,000
78 7T 3 & {8 /85,800,000 7T © Al
B ABusiness ActionfE K BB MR R &
FAI11,115,0008 7T - B it - A5 &
M Business ActionZ BX A #E 25 B45%
HZE50% ° R I% B FBusiness Action
HEWB AR 2R AEEEH
#Business ActionfT{# £k [F] {22 I 4 -
BT RS 1 B 7S I B R SRR SR
SEES—BRE-—HRAZ-Eit RN
Business ActionZ 1& & fX 754,000/ 7T
EEHR—XRBEL AR ZEZETH B
EREE AR ZE= (M518a) ©

c.  %EZEFIAIEL TBusiness ActionZz #
2oBEEM RERREE-Z——
F+ZA=+—BHUEFEREAERDY
B o NN B BE S T Business Action
TR RIS - ER— I E AR
RECEFHHEABK—REE AR
RIE (M5EDb) °

AT BEME R S R RRIBEEEM
BHREEARE M BERERAIN IS

with HKFRSs.

Rosedale Beijing EEHE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g—=F —T——fF
FET FHIT
Current assets MBEE 250,433 =
Non-current assets IEMBEE 51,517 =
Current liabilities mBAE (18,153) =
Non-current liabilities JEREBAE - -

BRI I 2 JR AT PR )
! 12013 %‘Tﬁ‘& ]- 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 17. A—XBE QAT 2= (8
Current assets mainly comprise of bank balances and cash of MBDEETEZEPRERITEHRKES
HK$236,064,000 (2012: N/A). 236,064,000 T (ZE——_F: 1@

) e
30.11.2013 to 1.1.2012 to
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-=F —E——fF
+-A=+AE —f—A%
—B—=F —ET—_F
t=A=t—-8 +ZA=1+—H
FET FHET
Revenue WA 6,504 -
Loss for the period ANHE & 1R (6,116) =
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 E A - -
Total comprehensive expenses for the period 7N Hf 5 2 T 5 57 44 %8 (6,116) =
Dividends received from B E W & A Bl RR B

the associate during the period - =

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the E AR EE il A RRERE
carrying amount of the above associate recognised in the consolidated WBEHERANER A B HER:

financial statements:

HK$'000
:F/%ﬂ:
Net assets of the associate e NA) BEFE 283,797
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBRBERNT CHEEEERZB DL
in the associate 20%
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition W AN TEBERARZEE 212,868
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBRBERR 2 ERRE SR

in the associate 269,627

1 2 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
0 Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 17. A—REE QAR 2R (&)
Business Action Business Action

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—=F —E—_F

FHERT FHET

Current assets MBEE - 105,967

Non-current assets JERENE EE - 1,648

Current liabilities mBEE - (6,987)

Non-current liabilities EmBEE - (113,511)

1.1.2013 to 1.1.2012 to

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—=F —T——fF

—B—HZ& —A—H=E

—E—=F —T——fF

+=A=+-R +-A=1—8

FHERT FHTT

Revenue A - 1,444

Loss for the year REZEHE - (4,039)

Other comprehensive income Hi2mEmikA - -

Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEEHEMAT R - (4,039)

Dividends received from the associate FAB WL QRIS

during the year - -

FIRE T I P A B A #]
o xzagll?f%#ﬁ 121
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18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REENFA 2R
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T——fF
FET T
Costs of unlisted investment in REE QT ZIELTREKA
joint ventures (Notes a & b) (FfsEakb) - 36,927
Share of post-acquisition losses FE(R U E 12 1R - (15,165)
Less: Impairment losses recognised B EERZBESE - (4,712)
- 17,050

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the

KRB =FR_FT——F+_A=+—

following significant joint ventures: H AEBRTIEEZEEEARIERE
=
Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation Class of of registered capital held of voting rights held
Name of entity Form of entity and operation shares held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
BEEER ERER HEMRIREREH FERGER AEERAAMERLE FEERAZRERLE TEEH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—®-=§ ~"T--f C"%-=f _"T-_F
Business Action Limited liability British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - n/a - nfa  Investment holding
Holdings Ltd. company (Note a) (Note a)
("Business Action”)
Business Action BEREEAA KBERRES LER - i - TER  RERR
Holdings Ltd. (Ktzta) (Kata)
(Business
Action |)
Sinomatrix Limited ~ Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary - 50% - 50% Investment holding
("Sinomatrix") (Note b) (Note b)
Sinomatrix Limited A& ABARRESE  LTBER - 50% - 50% RERR
([Sinomatrix ] ) (HEtb) (Hzth)

1 22 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

On 28 January 2013, the interest in Business Action was reclassified
from an associate to a joint venture (details set out in note 17b).
In November 2013, the Group disposed its 50% equity interest in
Business Action and received repayment of its shareholder’s loan at a
total cash consideration of HK$57,995,000. The interest in Business
Action included the investment cost of HK$4,000 and the amount of
advance to Business Action with carrying amount of HK$45,736,000,
and therefore a gain of disposal of a joint venture amounting to
HK$5,166,000 and reversal of impairment losses made on amount
due from the joint venture of HK$7,089,000 were recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The interest in Sinomatrix with carrying amount of HK$17,050,000
has been transferred to International Travel System Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, during the year. Sinomatrix is holding
a property located in Kedun Plaza, Nanning, Guangxi through a 70%
owned subsidiary. On 20 December 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party whereby the counterparty
purchased the entire issued share capital of International Travel System
Inc.. Details of the disposal of a subsidiary are set out in note 37a.

==F =F+=H=F+—HIEFE

18. REE DAl 2= (&)

RZZFE—=%—A=Z+NA 'R
Business ActionZ ## z F3 — XK i & A A)
ENOEE—REELD (FBEER
M3E17b) M -B—=F+—F A&
B 1 & E A Business ActionZ 50% A& 2K
R WRERRERZER B35
% R {8 A&57,995,00078 7t > FABusiness
ActionZ # 25 B 1R 1 & BX 284,000 7T
LA K2 46 FBusiness ActionBRHE & 581
45,736,000 L 2 B B REE =
E—=Ft+-A=t+—RHItFEELE
% 585,166,000 T2 HE—R& &
A FU 25 K2 7,089,000/8 7T 2 fEUR A &
ANEIFIBREBERERE -

FRRSinomatrixBk @ & 8 A
17,050,000 T Z #m B BB EARE
E 2 2 & M E 2 Alinternational Travel
System Inc. ° Sinomatrixi#E 8 —X#A
0% MBRAIKFENNERAEE
Kedun Plazaz % - HM=ZT—=F+=
AZ+H AKEBE-ZBHEIE=FH
RN —hihE Bt ZREFHEE
International Travel System Inc.Z 282
BITRAN - HE—KMB AR 2 15
PAHtEE37a ©

M HE AT 24
2013 44
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —F—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 1B.REERF 2R (5)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually ERMELEEAZELRAABNETE
material. Kt

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T——F
FERT FHT
The Group's share of loss from REBELBELEEBER
continuing operations (3,074) =
The Group's share of post-tax loss from REEELRIEEEEBRTIEER

discontinued operations - -

The Group's share of REBEEEMEZEMS

other comprehensive expense - -

The Group's share of AEEEEEERY B

total comprehensive expense (3,074) =
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. I HERE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—=F —T——fF
FET FAET
Equity securities f& A7 75

Unlisted shares, at cost FE EWAR - FERKARE 63,877 63,877
Less: Impairment losses recognised B EHERZBERE (32,239) =
Amounts shown under non-current assets FERBDEEBE NI REHE 31,638 63,877

1 2 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group’s major available-for-sale investments as at 31

December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Paid up
Place of capital/ Proportion of nominal
establishment/ registered  value of issued capital held
Name of entity incorporation capital by the Group
‘000 2013 2012

BERE/ AEERAZERT

19. 7 HERE (@)

RZE—=FF_FT——F+-_A=+—
B AEBEEFZAHHEEREFBD
T

Interest attributable
to the Group Carrying amount Principal activities

2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000

.52 RY/ERRLEY aRER RAEEzLE AEEELER REE TEEH
fr Z=B-zf -2 <=-B-Zf <-T--f <ZB-=f %%
TER TAL
ENESHEREERAR PRC RMBS,000 25% 25% 25% 18,829 31,232 Property investment
("BMBR") (Note a)
ENESHEREERAR HE ARH8,0007 NERE
([EMER]) (HEa)
More Cash Ltd. (“More Cash") British Virgin Islands us$10 6% 6% 6% 12,809 32,645  Property investment
(Note b)
More Cash Ltd. ([More Cash |)  EB#BRES 10£7 NERE
(H3ED)
31,638 63,877
Notes: P e

(@) Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 25% interest in f& /1| 5 5%,
the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise significant
influence on the financial and operating policies of E/M$£= and
accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale investment.

(b)  More cash wholly holds a subsidiary, & /NI 5 ZE &R A ], which
is incorporated in the PRC and engaged in property development in
the PRC.

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities established in the PRC or
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured

reliably.

() HWAREE -—RIBRARFAEBEMR
525% 2 s EEFRRAEE TR
HEMBRR M B RELERRITERE
FEN WEMNRRDEDBER A
AHHERE -

(b) More cash® &+ 8 — KN B A
Y ZHBRAREMNIBEEERRAR
ZHBARRTPENEHEERE-

ALIE ETTARE 0 P BRI 30 SR
ARESEMR L2 MAEREITZIFE
MERABZ 2 RE - HRZFREZAE

RNHEEGABEREN ARBESAR
TR S ERBAATEE #ZER
BERE2HRMERBIZUAERRETE -

FH R I 4 JBEAT RO )
' oozt 125
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19.

20.

126

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group identified
impairment losses of HK$32,239,000 in the available-for-sale
investment (2012: nil) after taking into account of decline in the market
values and the valuation carried out on that date by Norton Appraisals
of underlying properties held by their investees, E/J|#E 5 and More
Cash. As the decline in value is significant or for a prolonged period, the

impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss during the year.

At 31 December 2012, the directors of the Company take into
consideration of the market values of the properties held by their
investees and considered that they can recover fully the carrying value

of the investment.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the above intangible assets
had finite useful lives. Such intangible assets were amortised on a

straight-line basis over the following periods:

Hotel operating agreements 6 years to 15 years
The hotel operating agreements entitled the Group to manage and
operate certain budget hotels exclusively in Macau, Wuyishan and

Foushan, the PRC for a period of 6 to 15 years.

The recoverable amounts of the remaining CGUs were determined on
the basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation were those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to revenue and direct cost. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates were based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct costs were based on past practices and

expectations of future changes in the market.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

—ZF+=A=+—HILEE

19.

20.

AHHERE (8)

RBEE-_T—=F+-A=+—HBLF
€ AEBLET RERERBEMB R R
More CashFifiE 2 HEMETER EH
BIRR T 5% B 1T 2 ([ 1% - RAAT
& A B 32,239,000 TE R E £S5 18

(ZZF——%:8) ARTEAKRE KK
REIT B Bk S AR IR s FE RO (E
e

R-E——F+-_A=+—H AQA=E
EEREBRENGIFEZMETER
REAZEREEBRE 2 FHE -

HhE\EEE
REE-_FT——F+_A=+—BItF
B EEREEERHAGRAFEAF
Hlo Z S|P EEIRAREELTHIF
BN
B G B 6FEE 154
BEEEHE T AEEERN BREE
MR R s B ER L R LS T
ARG - AHI6Z=154F o

R NI EA B 2 AR D S A R (E
EREEFH AEERABEECIERRA

B RITR R B RRRIERA R EEK
REFNFRRER o B E (A BLAT L E A 5T
FERE URRIRETISHR S ELEM
ZERKEEEN L URZEFREESL
B 2 FrE R o 3B R R IATT IR RIRA
RERE - WA R BEERRAZH ABETS
B EmERRES BRI RKE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20. HthEREE (8)
The intangible assets were fully impaired in year ended 31 December mEEEERBE-_Z—Z—F1+=A
2012. =+—BIEFEEZERE-
Hotel operating
agreements
B E S & ek
HK$'000
FAT
COST R
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F—HF—8k
—E——#+—-_HB=+—H 182,919
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #es RORE
At 1 January 2012 R-—ZT——F—H—H 143,901
Charge for the year REEXH 4,937
Impairment loss recognised in the year REEDHERBREEE 34,081
At 31 December 2012 RZEBE—Z—F+=-A=+—8H 182,919
CARRYING VALUES BRTE B
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-HA=+—8H -
21. OTHER ASSETS 21. HftEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E—-F
FET FHET
Rental deposits and prepaid rental for BEEEHZE e R R
hotel operating agreements (Note a) BfEe (HiEa) - 471
Rental deposits (Note b) S (HsEb) - 27,073
Investment deposit (Note c) ®EZE (M) - 11,160
Others HAh, - 12,100
- 50,804

T N
‘ )L2013 AR 127
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —F—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

21. OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@  The amounts represented rental deposit and prepaid rental paid for
hotel operating agreements. The rental deposits are fully refundable
upon the end of the lease term. The hotel operating agreements
entitle the Group to manage and operate certain hotels exclusively in
the PRC for a period of 3 to 9 years. The amounts were refunded to
the Group during the year.

(b)  The amount represents 6-month rental deposits paid for the lease of
the hotel property of Rosedale on the Park. As at 31 December 2013,
the rental deposits will be refunded within twelve months at the end
of the reporting period, and therefore the amount is reclassified as
current asset shown in note 23.

(c)  The amounts represent deposit paid to an independent third party
for acquiring hotel operating agreements for hotel property in
Guangzhou. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
determined not to proceed such acquisition of the hotel operating
agreements with the counterparty. The recoverability of such deposit
paid is considered in doubt since the counterparty have not refunded
the deposit paid as agreed. Therefore, the amount of deposit paid is
impaired and recognised in profit or loss during the year.

22. INVENTORIES

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally food,
beverages and general stores which are to be utilised in the ordinary

course of operations.

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. BMEE (&)
Mot :

(@) ZEFREMREELCERHEELT 2B
e kBENES HEWSNHEE
REFATEZEURE < BE LS HEE T
REERMN BREELLEFHEET
B REBEIF-FA AEBEE
REZ LA

(b) ZEFREABEBHBEEEZEED
FHECHNZAEARSRE - R-F
—=F+-A=1+—RB HeWeHR
2HPB/REF T —EARNRE - W%
EFREHM DB RMEE23MR 2B
BE-

(@ ZEFREUIE EIMNEE D EZE
ERERZEN —RBULE=T 2%
L REEZ—=F+-FA=+—H
FFE AEBRENBEBEN TS
ETARBEERE B WS - RS
FHIRRRBEREENIEZS  BfE
FZEENES A ROREELET R
[ e Et - ZE N REFIERFEAEL
B PR E TR ©

22. 78

FEURATIR T2 RBEFEKBESD
ERZRM KKk —RAme

23. B R H B ERK

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—=F —E——F

FHExT FHET

Trade receivables B 5 AR 13,489 18,995
Consideration receivables FEUARE (FizE37ak37b)

(note 37a and 37b) 675,405 -
Rental and utility deposits (note) e MKEZE (i) 31,767 20,580
Other receivables H i U BR X 94,459 14,426
Total trade and other receivables B 5 hEAMEUWER KB 815,120 54,001

note: The rental and utility deposits included the amount of rental deposits
of HK$27,073,000 reclassified from the non-current asset as at 31
December 2013 (note 21b).

1 2 8 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group allows an average credit period of 0 to 30 days to its trade
customers. The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period

which approximated the respective revenue recognition date.

2. EFRHMEWERMK &

AEBETREEFIEP 2 PERENAT

F30H - AN RE ZRURRN 2R

REFRER A H (AU AR B #1E
)22 RE DT

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-=F :?*—E

0 - 30 days 0%30H 10,682 12,105
— 60 days 31260H 777 2,647

- 90 days 61£290H 270 1,639
Over 90 days HE90H 1,760 2,604
13,489 18,995

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limits by
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year,
and the Group reviews the repayment history of receivables by each
customer with reference to the payment terms stated in contracts to
determine the recoverability of a trade receivable. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, 79% (2012: 64%) of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have good credit quality at the

end of the reporting period with reference to past settlement history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,807,000 (2012:
HK$6,890,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

AEBEEREMHELA  BFEER
FrZEEER TETZEFPZREER
H-RPEBRCZBRESEFRT—A M
AEE2RBE N2 ARG RTTE
BEEERUER 2L LETE SR
WERR 2 IR EREE - AN R EFRA

LRBPEZEELE R 2RPERET
RBEBAERBERMMBEZ79%E 5 FEW R
(ZZ——F:64% ) EARIFEEE % -

AEBCEIRERWEREHBELR
A B #2,807,0008 T (ZF — =4 :

6,890,000/ 7T) 2 B HEWR - 2 FE
SRR 2 RBLAREE S B
SENES L ELREBERE RELE
AEERAZEE HRREREEERT
mELASAZEY NAIREEBESFE K
SEN RS EART A RS o

105 I 2 IR A B 2 )
' x2013 %*f& 129
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired

2. EFRHMEWERMK &

EEMBERBEZE S BRERR
AR

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-=F :2*‘@

- 60 days 31£60H 777 2,647

— 90 days 61£290H 270 1,639
Over 90 days H3E90H 1,760 2,604
Total 5t 2,807 6,890

The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables and

no allowance was recognised for both years.

Included in the consideration receivables were the amount of
HK$10,000,000 (2012: nil) from a disposal of a subsidiary (see note
37a) for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the
directors of the Company are still considered it as recoverable after

assessing the financial background and condition of the receivable.

Included in the other receivables balances at 31 December 2013 were
prepayment of approximately HK$46,000,000 (2012: nil) for certain
renovation projects of the Group’s hotels in the PRC of which the
projects were terminated during the year and the amount has been
agreed with the contractor to be refunded subsequent to the end of
reporting period, and other loan receivables of HK$27,116,000 (2012:
nil) of which are interest bearing at prevailing market rate, unsecured

and repayable within twelve months at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, impairment losses of other receivables of HK$7,871,000
(2012: HK$11,526,000) were recognised in profit or loss as other losses

during the year due to the sundry receivables relating to a budget hotel

which could not be recoverable.

1 30 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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—=F+-A=t+—HzHtEK
EREREEAEEMATFEZBEEZ
& T HR1&TE B T 1Y 5 IEAV46,000,00078 7T
(ZZ2——%:8\) (FEEBEERFAR

i AR &2 [ 2 B AGE B 1 E 70 2 A4S
REBEBRBRIE)  AREAMERER
27,116,000/ (ZE——F : &) (FH#
BFRBATH IS ARG B |EHRAER
EHRPERET T ZEAREE) -

AN - B A A AE UK B0 B 47 BTG 5 AR RE
FEMHTBIR - ME RN F A B R
fto FE W BR R 2 R E &G 187,871,000 7T (=

T ——4F 111,526,000/ 7T ) * HIVEE M /&S
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24. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 24 FIEEE 2 RE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=fF —E——F
FET FAT
Listed securities LEHES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB Lz RAF 535 290

25.

The fair value was based on the quoted prices of the respective

securities in active markets.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, no investments held for trading have

been pledged as security.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits carry interest at prevailing market interest rates of
0.01% (2012: 0.01%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits at 31
December 2013 carried prevailing market interest rate of 0.01% (2012:
0.01%) per annum and were pledged for banking facilities used by the
Group.

At 31 December 2013, the pledged bank deposits of HK$306,079,000
(2012: HK$3,263,000) is pledged against bank borrowings repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period, and

accordingly, the amount is classified as a current asset.

Included in assets classified as held for sale (note 26) at 31 December
2013 is pledged bank deposits of HK$5,000,000 (2012: nil), being
pledged for a bank borrowing classified as liabilities associated with

assets held for sale.

Included in the pledged bank deposits at 31 December 2012 was an
amount of approximately HK$11,780,000, being pledged for a long-
term borrowing, and accordingly, the amount was classified as non-

current.

25.

AN EETBBERBES NGRS 2R
B8

R —=FR=_FT——-F+=ZA=+—
B WERIEEE ZIRA D THEMRIERR -

Ell ?& j:$ ﬁE ? /ﬂ n\l:l

KBS

RITHEKRIRESPEAEEFEZRER
BIRTHISEMNR001% (—ZF— 4
001% )t B2 RHBRITHER-—FT—=

F+ - A=1+—B B IEPRITFERIZE
THHBERNRN % E(ZE——F:
0.01% )  MZzELEPRITERIDASE

BB RRITRVE 2 Ao

—=F+ZA=1+—RHZBKAE
1177 3306,079,0008 7T (=T — =4 :
3,263,000/ 7T ) JY7E B 2 & B A R AB 5T
TEARERRITEEZER  iZ
REESHEARBDEE-

R-ZZ—=F+_A=+—RBHHEAR
e & 2 B E (Hi5E26) B IR K IRRTT
17 55,000,000 T (Z T —Z 4 &) -
THRITERE ZER MZREE DB AR
RIELECEERB &

TR+ A=+—H2ZBHEMRT
FRBIE—%4911,780,000/8 7T 2 3/ 1B

DROEEZER  WZHEEBAER
E LD

M HE AT 24
2013 44t
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD

26 7 RAREFLEZEERSA
FOR SALE =

On 5 November 2013, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Eagle
Spirit Holdings Limited (“Eagle Spirit”), and an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) have entered into a conditional disposal agreement
pursuant to which Eagle Spirit agreed to (a) dispose to the Purchaser
of 60% of the entire equity interest in and 60% of shareholder’s loan
due from More Star, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eagle Spirit, which
acts as an investment holding company and its subsidiary, Fortress
State International Limited (“Fortress State”), is principally engaged
in the business of holding of a hotel property known as “Rosedale
Hotel Kowloon”, which is located at No. 86 Tai Kok Tsui Road, Tai
Kok Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Property”); (b) enter into a lease
agreement between the Company’s another wholly owned subsidiary,
Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited (“Rosedale Kowloon”), and Fortress
State to lease the Property for its hotel operation for a term of six years
(“"Master Lease”); (c) grant to the Purchaser a put option relating to
the acquisition from Eagle Spirit of all the 60% equity interest in and
corresponding shareholder’s loan due from More Star (the “Purchaser
Put Option”) which is exercisable only in the event of a deadlock; and
(d) grant to the Purchaser a call option relating to the disposal to the
Purchaser of the remaining 40% equity interest in and corresponding
shareholder’s loan due from More Star (the “Purchaser Call Option”)
which is exercisable only in the event of a deadlock, for a total cash

consideration of approximately HK$789,200,000.

The Purchaser shall be entitled to exercise the Purchaser Put Option
or Purchaser Call Option if a proposal is made by the Purchaser or
a director nominated by it in relation to: (a) the leasing or licensing
of the Property as a whole to a party other than Rosedale Kowloon
or (b) the appointment of any party other than Rosedale Kowloon
as operator or manager of the Property, on or after the expiration
or earlier termination of the Master Lease to be entered into with
Rosedale Kowloon and such proposal is not approved by Eagle Spirit
(the occurrence of a deadlock). The details of the disposal are disclosed

in the Company’s circular dated 18 February 2014.

1 32 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

The assets and liabilities attributable to the Group's interest in More
Star, which is expected to be sold within twelve months, have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale and are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The consideration is
expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and

liabilities and accordingly, no impairment has been recognised.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of More Star as at 31
December 2013, which had been presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position, were as follows:

6. P EABIEHECZEEREA
& (@)

RNEE M More StarZ EmEHEERBE
BE R T —EARLE WA HARE
HEZHEERR  REGEMBIKRRERP
B2 KBRS EREEEERE
B2 BREFE I BERRE -

More StarR —E—=F+=-A=+—H%
HREPBMRRRRTB L2 EBEE
MEeEEMT

HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment LERE S YSE 810,140
Other receivables H b B UK BR X 52
Pledged bank balances (note 25) BEMRITAEER (HIFE25) 5,000
Bank balances IRITHE R 22,114
Total assets classified as held for sale DEARELEZEESLE 837,306
Other payables H {th BT BR 7K 5,944
Bank borrowings RITEE 630,000
Total liabilities associated with assets classified HOEARFEHECEERBZABRSE
as held for sale 635,944

During the year, the Group obtained additional bank loan amounting
to HK$195,000,000 (2012: HK$30,000,000) which are repayable
within one year. Hotel properties of approximately HK$810,140,000
(2012: HK$1,425,382,000) were pledged as securities for these bank

borrowings as at 31 December 2013.

F A - AR E HYS & £0195,000,00078 7T
— Z4F : 30,000,000/ 7T ) Z EEAMR
TER ER—GFRNEE-R-T—=F
—A=+—H"#810,140,000/% T (=
=T — Z 4 :1,425,382,0007 7T ) 2 B IE ¥
EBTHER EARSRITEEZER

—~

+

FH R I 4 JBEAT L8 )
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD

27.

134

FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the conditions for the
disposal of More Star are satisfied including a resolution was passed
by the shareholders of the Company for the approval on the disposal
agreement at a special general meeting held on 5 March 2014. The

transaction was completed on 14 March 2014.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
approximately HK$8,710,000 (2012: HK$9,990,000) and the aged
analysis of the trade payables presented based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

27.

6. P EABELEZEERA
& (@)

SRR » HEMore StarZ K1 E
KOER - BREARRIRER - —NF=
AEBRITZRREFINAE @B —IER
BRMWELERZE ZRFHERZE—N
F=AFTMHETERK-

%

BEZREMEMNRRK

FINE 5 K H fth & BR 3K 2 K
2/498,710,000% 72 B HEMERF (=
— Z4£:9,990,000/ 7T ) ' il & 5 FE I AR
N 2 MER A RFIR S E B B R 2 AR E
DR :

BB

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FERT FHET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 4,428 4,781
— 60 days 31£60H 1,445 2,018
- 90 days 61290H 1,514 1,687
Over 90 days 3B90A 1,323 1,504
8,710 9,990

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to BE RN FI0HE0R - —F—=

60 days. Included in other payables at 31 December 2013 are
advance receipt from customers of approximately HK$7,705,000
(2012: HK$8,935,000), deposits received for rented premises of
approximately HK$14,380,000 (2012: HK$18,989,000), payable for
hotel construction amounting to approximately HK$311,000 (2012:
HK$11,322,000), accrual for administrative expenses of approximately
HK$29,858,000 (2012: HK$51,348,000) and interest payables on other
borrowings of approximately HK$567,000 (2012: HK$2,665,000).

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

FTZA=+—BZHMENERRBE
T8 S WRER R B 2 IA 7,705,000 70 (=

— % :8,935,000%7T) - EEWEE
IR AT 4 4914,380,000/8 7T (=T — — 4
18,989,000/ 7T ) B 5 22 5% FE T FRIE A
311,000/ 70 (=T — =4 :11,322,000/8
JL) ~ ET 1T % 4929,858,0008 7T (=
T — 4 :51,348,000570) R H M {E &
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28. BORROWINGS

28. B &

Effective interest rate

—=ZF+_HA=+—RHItFE

Carrying amount

ERA=E REE
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2013 31122012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=f —T—=f —g-=% —E-CF
+=A=+-R ftZA=+-B +ZA=+-B +ZA=+-AH
TER THEL
Bank borrowings BITREE
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") PR ARBT
Benchmark Deposit rate times ([RBARBIT)ER
120% secured RMB loan HREFIRF120%F EH
ARKER - 8.0% - 2,963
Hong Kong Interbank Offered rate BBRITRERE
("HIBOR") plus 2.4% secured ([BBRITAERE])
HKD loan M ABFERETER 2.8% 2.8% 206,000 220,000
HIBOR plus 1.75% secured HKD loan /&R RZEFEM1.75E
BEMETLER - 2.2% - 435,000
206,000 657,963
Other borrowings HitfE &
Higher of HIBOR plus 2.5% or 3% BERTREFEM25ER
unsecured HKD loan 3B (B mEAE)
BEEMETLER 3.0% 3.0% 250,000 250,000
Fixed interest rate unsecured HKD loan ~ EIE Al R EE BT E X - 10.0% - 8,148
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 2% 7S t& 2 BF| X MN2E
unsecured HKD loan BERBTER 7.0% 7.0% 10,000 10,000
260,000 268,148
466,000 926,111
L T
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. fRE (5
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—=4fF —E—-—F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
FET FHET
Carrying amount repayable*: AHEBZREE*:
Within one year —F R 216,000 32,889
More than one year but not HBRE—FETEAMF
exceeding two years 100,000 208,222
More than two years but not BAMFETBARF
exceeding five years 150,000 250,000
466,000 491,111
Carrying amount of the bank loan that HEREREFTIEXER—FA
contains a repayable on demand clause B RITE R ZREE
but due within one year - 435,000
466,000 926,111
Less: Amount due within one year B RRE A Gz —FREIERIE
shown under current liabilities (216,000) (467,889)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities %! & 3JE7 B) & & 2z B 250,000 458,222
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in * ERNRIEABRBEME . HEER
the loan agreements. BEIRER-

1 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
3 6 Annual Report 2013
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. fRE (5
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following RERALERF AEE 2 RBAEER
undrawn borrowing facilities: BT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —T——F
FET FHIT
Floating rate — expiring beyond one year FENF R - —F 12 5 H 20,000 57,825
Bank deposits of approximately HK$311,079,000 (2012: R—ZE—=F+_A=+—H"
HK$15,043,000) were pledged as securities for these bank borrowings #47311,079,0008 T (=& — — £ :
as at 31 December 2013. 15,043,000/8 7T ) Z IR1TF M E TH M
ERZERITEE ZER.
As at 31 December 2013, included in other borrowings were balance R-E—=F+-_A=+—H HpEE
of HK$250,000,000 (2012: HK$250,000,000) for both years with a BIERE-—RABARRRIREEBZRHZ AR
company which is a strategic business partner of the Company. As at 31 2 3 E £F [E 45 #2250,000,0008 7T (=&
December 2012, also included in other borrowings were then balances — £ :250,000,000/87C) c AR E——
of approximately HK$8, 148,000 with a company which has a common F+ZA=1+—RH EmEEITSEER
substantial shareholder with the Company. Bl —REARNRHEEHRAFERR 2 A F
2 4582 %98,148,0007 7T ©
AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 29. BN —XM BT — A IFE

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.

B IR R AR IR
RRENEER  ARERERRLE

R 42 IR AT PR A ]
2013 4F- it
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group unwound and

settled an interest rate swap with a bank which is not under hedge

accounting. The major terms of the interest rate swap are as follows:

RBE-_ZE—Z=F+-A=1+—HIEF
5 B ARBR D 45 B B — RIRAT PRI AL
Z — AN FEUAR R & ET BRI 2 R AR o
ZA K E 2 EE RN

th
o

Notional amount Commencement date Maturity date Swaps
EHeH B A FHA =8
HK$100,000,000 25 March 2011 25 December 2014 From 1.765% to

100,000,0007% 7T

—=

=A=-+HH

—E—OF

3 months HIBOR
F1.765/FZZ =& A

+=—B=+®H ERRITRIZERE

The gain on fair value changes of the interest rate swap was

approximately HK$650,000 (2012: HK$128,000) and was credited

directly to profit or loss during the year.

31. DEFERRED TAXATION

31.

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movement thereon during the current and prior years:

Accelerated
tax

MEBB2ATFEESZD WENA
650,000 7T (= ZF — =% : 128,000/
) BEEFAFAZ Al

i SE B IR

ATRRAFERBEFECHER IR
BEERARE ARARZEE:

Fair value of

depreciation Revaluation properties
on hotel  of investment on business
properties properties combination Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REKE O
BEMEZ WEZ
MEABERE EERENE AFEE @it
FHIT FHT FHT FHIT
At 1 January 2012 R-T——F—HF—H 176,664 - 1,194 177,858
Credit to the profit or loss AR (8,104) 4,000 = (4,104)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F
+=-A=+—8 168,560 4,000 1,194 173,754
Currency realignment AR 4,693 = = 4,693
Credit to the profit or loss sF AR (HMtEE12)

(note 12) (8,336) (4,000) - (12,336)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BIELE—RKIBAR (104,113) = = (104,113)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKTBAR = = (1,194) (1,194)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F

+=—A=+—8H 60,804 - - 60,804

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 31 B E ()
As at 31 December 2013, the Group has unused tax losses subject to RZE—=F+-A=+—H X%
the agreement of tax authorities of approximately HK$736,080,000 ZARBRARBEER (AREREKEARE)
(2012: HK$750,656,000) available for offset against future profits. No #/736,080,0008 . (Z T — = F:
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these tax losses 750,656,000/ 7T.) * AT A {E 4K 88 K 2K i
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Pursuant to the Flo R REETERT B 18 2 & FIAOR -
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the unutilised tax losses of BRZENEEERERAREREEE-
approximately HK$68,038,000 (2012: HK$65,926,000) can be carried RIER BB AR KRR REBHB
forward for a period of five years up to 2017. The losses arising from [E518 4968,038,0008 L (=T — =4 :
overseas subsidiaries are insignificant, which will expire after a specific 65,926,000/ ) Al EE R AFEE =
period of time. Other unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward —tF FHNT B AR EL B ISHREE
indefinitely. HARRME B Bl 2 BRI N E K - T A R i
R E B A IR B4 82 -
SHARE CAPITAL 32. BA&
Number of
shares Amount
HK$:000
ROEE K]
FHIT
Authorised EE
Shares of HK$0.01 each at RZE——F—HA—H
1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 T+ A=+—H
and 31 December 2013 RZT—=F+="A=+—H
FREE.0NE T2 IRHD 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
Shares of HK$0.01 each at RZZFE—=—F—HA—8"
1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 —T——H#+-_fF=+—HE
and 31 December 2013 —E—=F4+_-_A=+—H
FREE.01E T2 IR 657,675,872 6,577
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. B RERT &

The share option scheme of the Group (the “Rosedale Hotel 2002
Scheme") adopted on 3 May 2002 (as amended on 27 May 2005)
expired on 3 May 2012. No share options were granted under the
Rosedale Hotel 2002 Scheme during the period from 1 January 2012 to
3 May 2012, nor share options outstanding under the Rosedale Hotel
2002 Scheme at 31 December 2012.

$%lﬁf77fﬁﬁﬂ HRARN =

TRHERA -+ BERET 2 B
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%:%%:iﬁanam
—E——FRA-HBER -RZT—Z=F
—A—BREZZ——-FRA=HILHHE"
WHERBHBAE ST - FralR e
R MR _T——F+=_A=+—87
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 33. BB EESTE (o)

Following the expiry of the Rosedale Hotel 2002 Scheme, a new share
option scheme of Rosedale Hotel (the “Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme”)
was adopted on 30 May 2013 and became effective on 3 June 2013.
The purpose of the Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme is to enable Rosedale
Hotel to grant options to subscribe for shares of Rosedale Hotel (the
"Options”) to any eligible employee (including executive directors),
any non-executive director, any supplier of goods or services and
any customer, of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds
an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”), any consultant, adviser,
manager, officer and entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group and the Invested Entity and
any shareholder of any member of the Group who has contributed to
the business of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions or potential contribution to

the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme, when aggregated with any
shares subject to any other schemes, is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of Rosedale Hotel in issue on the date of adoption of the
Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless
Rosedale Hotel obtains an approval from its shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit such that the number of
shares of Rosedale Hotel in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme and any other share option
schemes of Rosedale Hotel shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
Rosedale Hotel in issue as at the date of approval. Nevertheless, the
maximum number of shares of Rosedale Hotel which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and not yet exercised
under the Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme and any other share option
schemes of Rosedale Hotel shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares
of Rosedale Hotel from time to time. The Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 3
June 2013 subject to earlier termination by Rosedale Hotel in general

meeting or by its board of directors.

1 40 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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34.

35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The acceptance of an Option granted under the Rosedale Hotel 2013
Scheme must be taken up within 21 days from the date of grant and
to be accompanied by payment of the consideration of HK$1.00.
The Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme at any time during a period as the board
of directors of Rosedale Hotel may in its absolute discretion determine
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant and
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof and the board of
directors of Rosedale Hotel may provide restrictions on the exercise of
an Option.

No Options under the Rosedale Hotel 2013 Scheme were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the period from 3 June 2013 to
31 December 2013, nor Options outstanding under the Rosedale Hotel
2013 Scheme at 31 December 2013.

RESERVES

The special reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the group
reorganisation in September 1997; and (ii) reduction of share capital
took place during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2008.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in notes 28 and 29 (net of cash and cash
equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annually basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.

33.

34.

35.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

36a. Categories of financial instruments

36. T A
6. TR T EEERI

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —E——F
FHET FHT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including ERRERER (BERE R
cash and cash equivalents) ReEEER) 1,516,703 443,268
FVTPL ERBREAFEENE
— Investments held for trading —RBEEEZRE 535 290
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 31,638 63,877
1,548,876 507,435
Financial liabilities SEAs
Amortised cost B AR 497,600 965,530
Derivative financial instrument PTEemIA - 2,730
497,600 968,260

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

142

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, investments held for
trading, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, borrowings, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and derivative financial instrument.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, cash flow interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to

market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk.

Market risk

()

(ii)

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant foreign currency sales
and purchases, therefore exposure to foreign currency risk is

minimal.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances and borrowings (see notes 25 and
28 for details of these balances). The Group also has fixed
interest rate financial liabilities which exposed the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. It is the Group's policy to keep its
bank balances and borrowings at floating rate of interests so

as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate, HIBOR and PBOC Benchmark Deposit rate arising from
the Group’s Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi denominated

borrowings.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each of the reporting period. For
variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amounts of liabilities outstanding at the end of each of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis points (2012: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. No sensitivity is presented for the bank balances as

the bank balances are short-term in nature and the impact is

insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2013 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,946,000 (2012: increase/decrease by HK$3,832,000).

This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate loans.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during

the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate

debt instruments.

1 4 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in equity securities and derivative financial
instrument. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group's other price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted on the Stock

Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis for other price risk is presented as the

effect is considered insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2013 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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6b. A EMEEREREE

(%)
5 a5 (&)
(iii) B AEETE AR

REBRRARESH 2 B RIT
Ee T ARTHMERE

EREEEARA —HES
TRER IR EHLE  AERE
UEEERBE o AN AEEE EE
—XEEBMERERRR
WA R ERE R HRE AR
R AEE EMERERE
EEFRIEB R T RE 2 R
TH-

@
@

DA
HRFEBRE/LTEKR W

I % 2 51 KA (B AR R R 2 U=
EDH e

=B AR

fisl 4 F 75 KRB —F=HFAt—
A=t—REAZHCHEATRE
EZEE AREEMAEZ&S(E
ERRRRA BRI BKRMIIZ
FEEZEREE-

FH R I 4 JBEAT RO )
‘ oz s 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b1 B 5 A i

For the year ended 31 December 2013 2 — &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

146

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each of the reporting period end to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks on its deferred
consideration receivables from disposals of subsidiaries (note 37a
and b) are due from two counterparties as at 31 December 2013.
These counterparties are engaged in hotel operation in the PRC.
As represented by the directors of the Company, both of the
counterparties are good credit quality by taking into account of

their financial background.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed to is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with

good credit ratings.

Other than above, the Group does not have any other significant

concentration of credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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36. T T B (&)
6b. U EMEEREREE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group'’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. The Group has obtained
banking facilities of HK$650,000,000 in October 2012 with
maturity dates from 2014 through 2017. Repayment on the
borrowings amounting to HK$630,000,000 has been classified
as liabilities held for sale and was repaid upon the completion of

disposal of a subsidiary (note 26) in the following year.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity, in the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are

based on the agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —F—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. R T A (&)
36b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. W EEERERBER
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B EZ/E R (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the TREBHERASHERE - WE
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted FERERZEFE  BIRFTREHE
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting BN E2WMABEREE ZFIERGE -
period.
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average or less than 1-2 2-5  undiscounted amount
interest rate 1year years years cash flows 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRER KB +=A=t-8
MEFHH = g-5R —FEME  WEELE ReHiE ZREE
% T T TFitn Titn Titn
2013 —E-=%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERNRR - 22,091 - - 22,091 22,091
Borrowings - variable rate fBE-Z8 3.00 216,729 106,000 168,000 490,729 466,000
Amounts due to a non-controlling B — KM B AR
shareholder of a subsidiary —BIEER R R A = 9,509 = - 9,509 9,509
248,329 106,000 168,000 522,329 497,600
Derivative financial liability ELHAE - - - - - -
2012 —2--F%
Non-derivative financial liabilities ETESREE
Trade and other payables B REMEMER = 30,262 = = 30,262 30,262
Borrowings - variable rate BE-ZE 2.70 470,033 219,244 259,275 948,552 917,963
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-E& 10.00 8,963 - - 8,963 8,148
Amounts due to a non-controlling B — KB AR
shareholder of a subsidiary — BRI R A - 9,157 - - 9,157 9,157
518,415 219,244 259,275 996,934 965,530
Derivative financial liability TELRER 4.00 1,372 1,480 = 2,852 2,730

1 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
8 Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

36¢.

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$630,000,000 (2012: HK$435,000,000).
Such bank loans would be repaid within one year (2012: two
years) after the end of the corresponding reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$643,684,000 (2012:
HK$444,353,000).

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as input. For option based

derivative, the fair value is estimated using option pricing model.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36¢. Fair value measurements of financial

150

instruments (Continued)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular the revaluation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which fair value measurements are categorised
(level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36¢. Fair value measurements of financial

6. @I A )

=F+-A=+-HLEE

36c TR T AN FEETE

instruments (Continued) (&)
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs to
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs input(s) fair value
EXEEEE
EXEEER P8 61
SHEE RATASZATEE ATEEER  HEFERIEBANE BAEE NTEEZBE
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
—E-=F —E-Cf
+=A=t-8 +-AZt-8
(1) Held for trading Non-derivative Listed equity securities  Listed equity securities ~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A
financial assets classified as in Hong Kong - in Hong Kong - an active market
investments held for trading in e~ HK$535,000 HK$290,000
statement of financial position
() REBRRREABAREEERE FALmhAZEs- BELORAEs- £-8 EEMHEARE R R
ZHEEEFTESREE 535,000/ 0 290,000
(2)  Interest rate swap as derivative - Liabilities (not designated ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flow - future N/A N/A
finandial instrument in the for hedging) cash flows are estimated
statement of financial position - HK$2,730,000 hased on forward interest
rates and contracted interest
rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties
Q) REBRRBRFIMEESRIAZ — BE(TFEREEAR 228 TRRERE- xxa@m;m R 1 @R
& #) —2,730,0007 BEANERANNES

36d. Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

&&ﬂ?ﬂﬁ%ﬁ1§ﬂﬁz
GESTE)

36d. A4RE
AV EME

31 December 201

FrE

3

—®-=%t-B=t-H

PMBEARRBRER 2

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£—& et = A%
TERT T TERT TER
Financial assets at FVTPL  #iBia %z A L EELSE
ZEREE
Listed securities ik 535 - - 535

R 42 IR AT PR A ]
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36d. Fair value measurements recognised in the

152

consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

6. @I A )
36d. A4rE

31 December 2013

B R R RR 2
AFREEHE(5)

—Z-=5+=-BA=+-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8R E=& E=R &5
FTEx THER THER TEx
Financial liabilities at FRERXBEATEASE
AL ZeMEaE
Derivative financial liability #7445 & & - - - -
31 December 2012
T F+ZRA=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—1 FH BE=H &5
FET FHET FHET FHL
Financial assets at FVTPL ZEBEBEZE AT EEE
ZEMEE
Listed securities EmE 290 = = 290
31 December 2012
—F-—ft-HA=t—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
%—_%& %:?& %E%& l:l E
FHT FHT FHT FET
Financial liabilities at ERBEREAVEEFE
FVTPL ZEemasE
Derivative financial liability TEERARE - 2,730 - 2,730
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 fair value REZE—=R =T ——F F—#HH

measurements in 2013 and 2012.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013
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37. HEMB AR RIEHE—
ey NG

37. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES/DEEMED
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 April 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with
three independent third parties for the sale of its entire interest
in Square Inn Hotel Management Limited (“Square Inn Hotel”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which holds a lease
contract for the operation of a three-star hotel in Macau, at a cash
consideration of HK$52,000,000. The transaction was completed
immediately upon signing of the agreement and has resulted
in the recognition of a loss of approximately HK$15,405,000 in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In addition, on 20 December 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party and the agreement
entitled the counterparty to purchase the entire issued share
capital of International Travel System Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in investment
holding and travel business in the PRC, at a consideration of
HK$5,000,000. The transaction was completed on the same
date and has resulted in the recognition of loss of approximately
HK$4,654,000 in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2013.

On 4 December 2012, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for the sale of its entire interest
in Square Inn Budget Hotels Management, Inc. (“Square Inn
Management”), a 79.82% owned subsidiary of the Group which
was inactive, at a consideration of HK$10,000. The transaction
was completed in the same month, resulting in the recognition of

a gain of approximately HK$2,216,000 in profit or loss.

RZZ—=FWA=-+hB ~5E
BB E=REI— R A
4R {852,000,0005 7T H &7 Bl
EREEBERAR ([FEMFH
Bl AERBEZ2EWNBAR KA
—EHE SN B NRP 2 —K
ZERBIE) 2R - ZR I
BERREA TR WERNEE =
T—=—F+-_A=+—HLFE®L
B R 415,405,000/ T2 F1E °

N RZE—=F+_A=+H"
RNEBE BB E=F513— D1
BoZhRETZEETFIENES
REE 2 2 & B A Flinternational
Travel System Inc. (EZ2EFBEMKE
REERRIRERER) 2 2702 1T
B&ZK - X8 /35,000,000 7T © FZIHAZ
SRABZKR TERRHEEZT
—=F+-A=t+—ALFEHLIE
= MR 494,654,00078 7T 2 E518

RZZT——F+-AMNH A"EEHE
—BBIUE=FF L AR
810,000/ 7T 1 B AN & B A Square
Inn Budget Hotels Management, Inc.
([Square Inn Management | » x4
EHEE79.82% s 2 ME AR R
REmEE) 2 2H R -ZIARS
RRATR TEHNBRERLD
2,216,000/ 7T 2 Wiz °

TR ¥ 5 o IR PR A ]
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —F—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

37. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES/DEEMED 37. HEMB AR RIEHE—
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) e PNCIED
a. (Continued) a. (#&)
The net assets of International Travel System Inc. and Square Inn International Travel System Inc. 52 75 [E
Hotel at the dates of disposal were as follows: WERERLEB B2 EEFEN
T
2013 2012
=t == =
International
Travel Square Inn Square Inn
System Inc. Hotel at Management
at 20.12.2013 29.4.2013 Total at4.12.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
International
Travel Square Inn
System Inc. FENEEE Management
R-B-—=% R-B—=% RZZE—ZF
+=A=+H MA=t+hH &% +=AmA
FET FTET FTERT FHT
Total consideration: wRME:
Other receivables H bR - - - 10
Cash consideration BeRE 5,000 42,000 47,000 =
Deferred cash ELHRENE
consideration - 10,000 10,000 -
5,000 52,000 57,000 10
Analysis of assets and REEHEZEERERE
liabilities over which il
control was lost:
Property, plant and VERY G
equipment 4,776 55,000 59,776 -
Interest in a joint venture R—REERRZ R 17,050 - 17,050 =
Other assets HiEE - 12,100 12,100 -
Other receivables oAt e AR AR 763 305 1,068 -
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMER (6,689) - (6,689) (1,711)
Tax liabilities HIEARE (871) - (871) (1,230)
Deferred taxation BRI (1,194) - (1,194) -
Net assets (liabilities) It ECFEE
disposed of (8% 13,835 67,405 81,240 (2,941)

1 5 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =% —

37. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES/DEEMED

ZE+=A=t+—HILEE

37. HEMB AR RIEHE—

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) e PNCIED
(Continued) a. (#&)
2013 2012
—%-= —E-=F
International
Travel Square Inn Square Inn
System Inc. Hotel at Management
at20.12.2013 29.4.2013 Total at4.12.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
International
Travel Square Inn
System Inc. FEREEE Management
R-B—=% R-EB-=% RZZ—=F
+=A=+H MA=+hA &5t +=—AmA
FExT FEx FEx FHT
(Loss) gain on disposals of HEMBATZ (EE)
subsidiaries: W
Consideration received B MK E
and receivables 5,000 52,000 57,000 10
Net (assets) liabilities FHEF (BE)EE
disposed of (13,835) (67,405) (81,240) 2,941
Non-controlling interests FEIRAR R 876 - 876 (735)
Expenses in connection B E AR 2 B
with the disposal (221) - (221) -
(Loss) gain on disposal RIS RERLE
before release of (E18) e
attributable reserve (8,180) (15,405) (23,585) 2,216
Cumulative exchange FEE (BE) 2 &5
difference in respect bE K ERR
of the net assets
(liabilities) 3,526 - 3,526 -
(Loss) gain on disposal iR REtE N EHE N
after release of B2 (EE) s
cumulative exchange
difference (4,654) (15,405) (20,059) 2,216
Net cash inflow arising HEMELEZBRERA
on disposal: HE
Cash consideration BEUCRERE
received 5,000 42,000 47,000 -
Less: Bank balances and B TR B ZRITREBRK
cash disposed of Hé - (1) (1) =
5,000 41,999 46,999 -
FIRE T I P A B A #]
a 2013 £t 1 5 5
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37. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES/DEEMED
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

a.

156

(Continued)

Regarding the disposal of Square Inn Hotel, the Group further
negotiated with the purchaser that the deferred consideration of
HK$10,000,000 will be settled in cash subsequent to the end of
the reporting period.

On 31 May 2013, the Group entered into a capital increase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Investor”).
Pursuant to the agreement, Rosedale Beijing was eligible
to increase its registered capital from US$17,200,000 to
US$86,000,000 and the increased registered capital of
US$68,800,000 was injected by the Investor and an amount of
net compensation of approximately HK$665,405,000 to be paid
by the Investor within six months after the completion date to
the Group. The capital injection was completed on 29 November
2013 and has resulted in the recognition of gain of approximately
HK$781,773,000 in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2013. Accordingly, Rosedale Beijing ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Group from that day and has retained 17.7% interest in
Rosedale Beijing (through the holding of approximately 88.7%
equity interest in DS Eastin Limited, which in turn holds 20%

equity interest in Rosedale Beijing) as an associate.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013

37. HEMB AR RIEHE —
XMEB QT (@)
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AEBBHEFENZEEEE
VR — PR RERPLEREZIFIA
IR &) B EIELERE10,000,00078 7T ©

RZTE—=FRA=+—R0 &%
BE-—EBUE=H ([ZREE])
RN ERE RIBEZBE

ARHBEREREFMEARR
17,200,000k 7T 3 £86,000,0005
JT.* FT38 5N 2 68,800,0003 7T 7 A &
AEZEEEEIN  MEREEER
SeAk B ERTE 7N A MR A S B S
{8 7% 5 49665,405,00078 T, ° S B 1
—E—=Ft+—HA=ZtThBEX A&
HBYRBEZT—=F+-A=+—
HIEFE B #ERA)781,773,000
BTz e o Bt b RIAEE % B
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37. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES/DEEMED
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

(Continued)

The net assets of Rosedale Beijing disposed of as follows:

—=ZF+_H=+—RHItFE

37. HEMB AT HRIEHE—
e ) NCIRE )

b. (&)

& 2L FInBEERENT

2013
—g_=
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment L/ ER Y g 679,085
Inventories & 2,693
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H Ath FE AR 7R 15,735
Pledge bank deposit BEEFIRITER 1,340
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRE S 6,974
Trade and other payable B 5 K HAth FE T BR 5K (14,749)
Deferred taxation IEETIR (104,113)
Shareholder’s loan (Note) fREE K (PfFE) (298,047)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (Note) FEAH R Bt 8 2 R 3R IE (BT ) (6,238)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (2,655)
Net assets disposed of Frit & 2 BEFE 280,025
Deferred cash consideration BEERENRE 665,405
Gain on deemed disposal of the subsidiary: R{EHEMHE QT2 :
Deferred cash consideration BEERESKE 665,405
Net assets disposed of FrHEzEEFE (280,025)
Initial recognition at fair value of BRAFEBEYSER
20% interest in Rosedale RIE R IARE 2 20% M o -
Beijing as an interest in an associate IER —FKEEE R Al 2w 270,850
Gain on disposal before taxation and release PR 750 A1 K2 R BR B R 48 AT HH B 2 W e
of attributable reserve 656,230
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of MEEFEZ RFTERLZERE
the net assets 125,543
Gain on deemed disposal before taxation BRELRIREL & 2 e 781,773
Less: Taxation I (66,744)
Gain on deemed disposal after taxation BRI EAREL & 2 e 715,029
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEELEZRERAFE:!
Repayment of shareholder’s loan and IR EERRE R REN
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries by B R B A R IE (KisE)
Rosedale Beijing (Note) 304,285
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of WM E 2 RITER KRS (6,974)
297,311
FIRE T I P A B A #]
o 2013 44t 157
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37. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES/DEEMED 37. HEHBAT BIEHE—

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

b. (Continued)

Note: As agreed by the parties to the capital increase agreement,
the amount of the capital injected into Rosedale Beijing
shall be firstly applied to the settlement of the shareholder’s
loan and the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries. Therefore,
there is repayment from Rosedale Beijing of the amounts
of HK$304,285,000 being received by the Group upon the
completion of the deemed disposal.

The deferred cash consideration of HK$665,405,000 will be settled in
cash by the Investor on or before 29 May 2014. Based on the capital
increase agreement, the obligation of the Investor to pay the deferred
consideration to the Group is to be secured by the share pledge to the

Group of 50% of the equity interest in Rosedale Beijing.

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2013
contributed approximately HK$80,075,000 (2012: HK$96,124,000) to
the revenue of the Group during the year. It contributed to the net loss
of HK$6,240,000 attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$1,920,000).

Other reserve in relation to the above subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$13,093,000 has been charged to the accumulated

losses upon deemed disposal of the subsidiary.

1 5 8 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Save as otherwise disclosed, at 31 December 2013, the Group's credit

facilities were secured by the Group's assets as follows:

38. EEHE

BRERTREENN R_T—=F1+-A
=t—H AEEZEEREALEET
& E A

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2-=% ====f

FET FHT

Hotel properties B E 3 810,140 1,425,382
Bank balances RITHE 311,079 15,043
1,121,219 1,440,425

Certain bank borrowings are secured by fixed charges over the
entire issued capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
floating charge over all the revenue of a hotel property of the Group
and fixed charge over all the assets of the same hotel. The hotel
property with carrying amount HK$810,140,000 and bank balances of
HK$5,000,000 has been recognised as assets and liabilities classified as
held for sale. The proceeds from the disposal will be used for repayment

of the bank borrowing.

ETRITBEURAR —REEMB LA
2HEBEITRAZ BTG AEE—H
BIEMEMAWRAZZFE L RE—H
JEFTA B E 2 BERTIERT - ZBED
¥ 7 AR {8810,140,0007% T & $R 1T 4 #4
5,000,000 TE A D EAIFELEZE
ERAEER - M ESRIESANER
RITEE -

FH R I 4 JBEAT RO )
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39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. WEFHNAIE
As lessee ERAEA
At 31 December 2013, the Group had commitments for future R-E—=F+-_A=+—H AEER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which BEBENARELEHN 2 AR &ERS
fall due as follows: NRRIERAE - L EREZZIBB T
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F —ET——F
FET FHIT
Hotel properties THIEYE
Within one year —F R 39,023 58,974
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEZETF(RREEEME) 190 53,708
Over five years RFE - 5,102
39,213 117,784
Other land and buildings Hit + bR EF
Within one year —F R 83 330
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF(RREEEME) - 83
83 413
Operating lease payments for other land and building represent rentals HAh L3 RIEF 2 KA BN IR ER
payable by the Group for certain of its office properties. REETHAEMEMEN Z2EE-

1 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
6 O Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
As lessee (Continued)

For hotel properties in the PRC, leases are negotiated for an average
term of three to nine years. For hotel properties in Hong Kong, leases

are negotiated for an average term of two to five years.

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately

HK$24,092,000 (2012: HK$23,475,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for premises within the hotel properties for
an average term of 2 to 6 years for PRC and for an average term of 1

to 2 years for Hong Kong:

39. REHNAIE (&)
EREEA ()

REEENEROEEARTHER
F BB EENEBORT AHTEEE
e

EREAA

FARUE 2 Y & WAL 524,092,000
BT (ZZ— =4 :23,475,00087C) °

RERBERE AEERBELITLA
% ARBRRBETARMEIEEENOT
FIFEEAN N AMERFR —EMFLZ
TERBBBENEAZDEZ RKRE
GEROEN PN

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —E-—F
FEx FAT
Within one year —FR" 8,604 8,314
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERFT (BREERMTE) 24,348 28,684
Over five years hF% 405 3,438
33,357 40,436
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EAREIE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —F—C-F
FET FH&T
Contracted for but not provided in the B THFIETHERRERS M
consolidated financial statements in WMREE:
respect of:
Capital injection in an associate AE—REE QT - 11,115
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE 4% - #2258 - 160
- 11,275

SR H AT A 7
‘ )L2013K§5§ﬁ 16 1
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41. PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES 41. AFEETE

The Group has retirement schemes covering a substantial portion
of its employees in Hong Kong. The principal schemes are defined
contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent

trustees.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all its new employees in
Hong Kong employed therefrom or existing employees wishing to join
the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of relevant payroll cost. Subject to a cap to monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 since 1 June 2012 (previously HK$20,000), which
contribution is matched by employees. The only obligation of the Group
in respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under

the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

The amounts charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or
payable to the schemes by the Group of approximately HK$11,674,000
(2012: HK$12,878,000).

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions (2012: Nil), which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which are available to reduce the

contributions payable in future year.

1 6 2 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HHEZE T —=F+—_A=+—HILFE

PURCHASE OF SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY
FROM NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 21 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Vendor”), whereby,
the Vendor agreed to sell and the Group agreed to purchase 1,260,000
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each in the capital of Apex Quality Group
Limited (“Apex”), representing approximately 0.5% of the issued share
capital of Apex at a total consideration of HK$13,500,000. Following
the completion, the Company’s equity interest in Apex increased
to approximately 88.7% and Apex remains as a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. The said transaction was completed in June

2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had transactions with

related parties as follows:

42. MIFEBRRRBE — XK B

NI &)

R-E—=FXA-+—H REHEHE—
ZELE=F (BRI L—HEEH
#FoB BFRBELEMASERESE
H Apex Quality Group Limited ([Apex ] )
fi% 75 7 1,260,000/% & i% T {80.023% 7T 2
TRAY - FEE P ApexB B 1TAY AR 490.5%
#X {8 513,500,00058 7T - R BB 1+ AR
N AR ApexZ R ZN 1 75 38 2 4988.7 % + 1M
Apex#ERAEE 2 2 EMRBRR - E
MRHGER_TE—=FNATK-

43. BEALTRS

@ KREAUMBHRREMBIARESE
S R REBEAEATETZ
RSN

Nature of transactions Name of related company 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMHE BEARER —E-=F —T——F
TR FHET
Loan interests paid and payable ITC Management
by the Group
REEBN RERNZEFFE ITC Management - 101

Note: The holding company of ITC Management has significant
influence over the Company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management members was set out in

note 11.

FFE : ITC ManagementZ 28 f& /A & 4
KRRBERTES -

(o) EZEEAEZH M

TEEIEASFHINEM LI -

R 42 IR AT PR A ]
2013 4F- it
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

44. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

A4, KRB B R E

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T-CfF
FHERT FAT

Total assets EEHAE
Property, plant and equipment W2 - HE2S KR 384 580
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZKE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W BT /BB R RN 1,642,945 1,649,831
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b R U AR X 22,724 10,095
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 10,605 100,833
1,676,658 1,761,339

Total liabilities BEEH
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H fth FEAT BR K 6,786 9,014
Borrowing — amount due within one year BEE——FARHNIE 10,000 18,148
Borrowing — amount due after one year BE-——F&EHRIE 250,000 250,000
266,786 277,162
Net assets EEZFE 1,409,872 1,484,177

Capital and reserves EXRHE

Share capital [ 6,577 6,577
Reserves G 1,403,295 1,477,600
1,409,872 1,484,177

1 6 4 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

44 INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

45.

44, KRB BRRER (&)

Movement in reserves REEH
Share Share Special Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ BRAD R E 5 B4R L6 ] Pk
FET FHET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2012 R—E——#—H—H 6,577 1,248,048 780,549 (439,580) 1,595,594
Loss for the year AEEFBE - - - (111,417) (111,417)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F
+=-RA=+—8 6,577 1,248,048 780,549 (550,997) 1,484,177
Loss for the year AEEFEE - - - (74,305) (74,305)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-RB=+—8 6,577 1,248,048 780,549 (625,302) 1,409,872
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EMBE L T

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013

and 2012 are as follows:

WTFEBR=_E—=Fk-_ZT——F+—A
=+—BARRZETEWB R RS

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group place of operation
2013 2012
% %
ERTRARRE/ AEBRAERTRE
AREB MR BT HEEAR TEMES BERES FTEEBREERY
—B-=f —Z--f
% %
Allied Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 728 725 Investment holding
("Allied Glory") in the PRC
BRREBRAR ([AK]) Bk 2B 72.8 725 PEREER
Apex Quality Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,548,172 88.7 88.2 Investment holding
(“Apex”)
Apex Quality Group Limited ERERREE 5,548,1723 7T 88.7 882 ALK
(TApex )
Asia Times Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 100 Investment holding
Asia Times Limited RERBARES 100% 7T 100 100  &KEER

R 0 e BT PR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE —FT—=F+_A=+—HIFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED) 45. T EME A A (@)

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group place of operation
2013 2012
% %
BRARMRRE/ AEEHEERTRE/
ARER MR B HEMEX HMEsz BERER TEERREEBY
—E-=F —T-ZF
% %
Benchmark Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
Benchmark Pacific Limited ERARREE (Y 100 100 FEREZER
DS Eastin Limited Hong Kong HK$20 88.7 88.2 Investment holding
in the PRC
BEGERAREBRAR BB 20% 7T 88.7 882  HMEREERK
Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited HEERRES (E 100 100 ZEER
Fortress State International Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Property holding
Limited in Hong Kong
RAERER AT N 1T 100 100 REEREVE
HMH China Investments Limited Bermuda CAD$1,152,913 72.8 72.5 Investment holding
HMH China Investments Limited BRE 1,152,913/0% 72.8 725 REER
Lucky Million Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 88.7 88.2 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Lucky Million Investments Limited ERARREE (Y 88.7 882  BEAREHER
Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel PRC* RMB 145,000,000 60 60 Hotel ownership and
Co., Ltd. operation in the PRC
RBEKERNBEERAA HE ARE 60 60  RAEEEREEEE
145,000,0007T

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

1 6 6 Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

45. T EM BN T (&

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group place of operation
2013 2012
% %
BRARMRRE/ AEEBEERITRE/
AEER MR R HEMEX dMEsz ERER TEERREEBE
—Z-=F§ —2——F%
% %
Makerston Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 88.7 88.2 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
Makerston Limited ERERREE (S 88.7 882  BEAREHER
Rosedale Group Hong Kong HK$2 88.7 88.2 Provision of management
Management Limited services in Hong Kong
HESEERERAR BB 2B 88.7 882  REBRMUEERS
Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd. PRC US$86,000,000 17.7 88.2 Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
ErHBEEEREEAH B 86,000,000 T 17.7 882 RAEHEBREZEE
Rosedale Hotel Group Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 88.7 88.2 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
HEBEEEEBRAR RERRRES Es 88.7 882  EBAREEK
Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., PRC# US$11,500,000 721 7.7 Hotel ownership and
Ltd. (“Rosedale Guangzhou") operation in the PRC
EMREEESRAR HE 11,500,000 7 72.1 7.7 RAEEREEREREE
(TEME])
Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
NEHBEEBRAR B 1T 100 100 REBEBEE
Rosedale Hotel International British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited in Hong Kong
Rosedale Hotel International HEEBRES (E 100 100  AAREER

Limited

SR HE AT 24
2013 44
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

45. T EMB AT (&)

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group place of operation
2013 2012
% %
BRIRMZRE/ AE@MBEERTRE/
AAER ML B 5 ERER EMERz ERER TEEBREENE
—E-=F —T-ZF
% %
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2 88.7 88.2 Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited BB 287 88.7 882 REBKERE
The Rosedale Luxury PRCH# US$20,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Hotel & Suites Ltd. in the PRC
HBEX (LB)BRAF th B 20,000,000 7 100 100 HENERE
Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 84.2 83.8 Property investment
in the PRC
REEERNERAR REARRES 100% 7T 84.2 838  RENERE
Shenyang Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 88.7 88.2 Investment holding
in the PRC
Shenyang Limited ERARREE (S 88.7 882  HEERERER
Shropshire Property Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$10 100 100 Investment holding
Preference in the PRC
-US$1,000
RENFARAF REARRES LER- 10%T 100 100 HEREER
BER-
1,000% 7T
Square Inn Hotel Management Macau MOP100,000 - 100 Budget hotel operation
Limited in Macau
HERFEEERERAF #F 100,000%) % - 100 REMEECERER
Success Billion Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited EBERRES 1% 100 100 REBEEZES

168

Annual Report 2013

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&7 o B 5 i 3R M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BLZE =T —=F+_A=+—HLFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

45. T EMB LT (&

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group place of operation
2013 2012
% %
ERTRAZKEK AEBBEERITRE/
ARER MR R HEMEX HMEsz ERER TEEBREEND
—Z-=F§ —2——F%
% %
Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited PRC* RMB 168,000,000 71.5 77.1 Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
BRES (OBG)BRA g AR 715 771 RAEREREEEER
168,000,0007C
WHS Marine Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 Ship building, repairing
and holdings of leisure
boat in Hong Kong
KERE B RN B 1,000,000% 7. 100 100 REEREREEHRE

i The subsidiaries are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

##  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Allied Glory
is entitled to recoup its total investment (including capital and interest)
from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou before any
amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the after-tax earnings of Rosedale
Guangzhou are to be distributed at 80% and 20% to Allied Glory and
other joint venture partner respectively.

##  This subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned entity.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results or assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

No debt securities have been issued by any of the subsidiaries during the

year.

AR R BB
f RSB ARTIRIMNRASE AT

# ZMBARAR-RKPIEESERT
FEINIARE Z BB AR & R B 4 20 Ik AE 7
IR ARAEPREE SRS
( BREESKFIR) - 2% EMNAEZ
B %53 12 22 ¥ 78 LAB0 % 52 20% 2 Lt Il 53
NIRRT AEREMEERHE-

e ZMBAR IS EE RS
EEARLERMIIAER 2B A RS
SEZREREERABEEEATYE &

ERRAEMMHB AR FBEESRIE
HENN =

FA- BEERMEQRBETESRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HiZE —FT—=F+_A=+—HIFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. T EHEB AT (@)
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the TRETIEAEAFERER 2 NEEIE
Group that have material non-controlling interests: 2EMBARZFIE:

Proportion of ownership

interests and
Principal place voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERREZEERERR AREFERES
WEARER TR 5 FTEEEBY REELE 2iaH (B8) RitFERER
422013 31122012 3422003 31122012 31422003 31122012
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-%-=f -%-F ZF-=F %5 ZF Z¥-=F %
+ZA t2A tZA +2A tZA +2A
=t-8  =t-8  =t-8  =+-8  =t-8  =t-4
TR TR Tix TiEn
Apex BVI Hong Kong and PRC 88.7% 88.2% 64,124 (2,823) 205,170 143,637
Apex KEERRES BERTE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries %7 3R 25 2 [R5
with non-controlling interests EPNGVNG 37,269 41,134
242,439 184,771
Apex is an unlisted equity interest with limited liability incorporated ApexB— RN EBHER A ST MK 2
in the British Virgin Islands. The Group’s shareholding of Apex varied FEETMRAERARAR - REERBEZ
between 88.2% and 88.7% throughout the relevant reporting periods. AR AN TR 2 ApexAR B/ F-88.2%
The directors examined all the relevant facts and circumstances, 28T % LM BEEKZEMBHEBEE
including the Group’s dominant voting interest in Apex, dispersion of RAEN - BIEAREBE R Apex 2 BE Bt
holding of other vote holders, rights arising from other contractual Pl =R B R EREAZRED R
arrangements, participation rates of shareholders and voting patterns in BE HMENRHEEEZERN  ARRK
previous shareholders’ meetings and concluded that the Group has the RRBERRAGZ2HEEREFEFTR
control over Apex and recognised Apex as a subsidiary throughout the 1% RANE B ¥ ApextE A =6 - W
relevant reporting periods. BAEFARI 2 RS ApextER A B AR °
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's BEERFERER 2 AERZHEAT
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. Z AR AT o AT B S & K E
The summarised financial information below represents amounts REB A ERTEER

before intragroup eliminations.

1 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
7 O Annual Report 2013
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

45. T EM BN T (&

Apex Apex
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-=# —g—-¢
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-§
FH&xT FHIT
Current assets mENE B 1,246,704 268,883
Non-current assets ERBEE 726,133 1,158,172
Current liabilities ViEIR=KE (327,674) (78,920)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (58,557) (374,535)
Equity attributable to owners of RRARIGER NEIEHE R
the Company 1,525,572 910,591
Non-controlling interests FEFEE IR EE 2 61,034 63,009

Current assets mainly comprise of trade and other receivables of
HK$681,010,000 (2012: HK$25,044,000), pledged bank deposits
of HK$306,079,000 (2012: nil), loans to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$63,972,000 (2012: HK$189,658,000) and bank balances and cash
of HK$160,479,000 (2012: HK$44,171,000).

Non-current assets mainly comprise of property, plant and equipment
of HK$456,506,000 (2012: HK$1,118,800,000) and interest in an
associate of HK$269,627,000 (2012: nil).

THEEFZERRE S R EMER
AR 5681,010,000/ 70 (=T — =4 :
25,044,000 T) - B I RITHF K
306,079,000 L (ZF——F: &) - —
R Z K& A Al E 363,972,000/ 7T (=
T — — £ : 189,658,000/ 7T ) & $R1T A5 £4
%3 £160,479,000%8 T (ZF — =4 :
44,171,000/ 7T) °

PRBDEETZBREMNE BILR

456,506,000/ L (=& — = F :
1,118,800,000/%8 7T ) & 7 — S Bt & A 7]
2 #E55269,627,0008 L (=T — 4 :
/) o

SR H AT A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B\ ZE —FT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. T EHEB LT (@)
Apex (Continued) Apex (%)
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000

BE-2-=%f #HE=E_T _-F
t=A=+t-A +ZA=1+—H

LEE IEFE
FERT FHT

Revenue A 309,730 335,668
Other revenue HagA 845,415 19,008
Expenses (53 (420,497) (357,266)
Profit (loss) for the year AEZHF (EE) 734,648 (2,590)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of NAREE AEREF (EE)

the Company 738,133 185
Profit (loss) attributable to JEIR G HEZS EAE A (E4E)

the non-controlling interests (3,485) (2,775)
Profit (loss) for the year REZ &N (EE) 734,648 (2,590)
Other comprehensive income attributable to N2 AJ#E A A FEMG E 2 EUA

owners of the Company (123,152) -
Other comprehensive income attributable to  JE#2 J& 2 25 FE 45 £ 2 E UL A

the non-controlling interests 1,510 -
Other comprehensive income for the year AFEFEHMEEmEA (121,642) =
Total comprehensive income attributable to N2 1A A FE(G 2 E UL A 42 %8

owners of the Company 614,981 185
Total comprehensive income attributable to  FE{2 i% = fE (h 2 E R A 4258

the non-controlling interests (1,975) (2,775)
Total comprehensive income for the year RNEEZHEBABE 613,006 (2,590)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ~ [A] FE4% A% 4 25 AT (< iR & - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBZRERAFRE 14,320 21,900
Net cash inflow (outflow) from wEEHZHERA ORE) FE

investing activities 123,944 (17,359)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEH 2B ML FE (14,385) (10,741)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BemA ORt) F8 123,879 (6,200)

1 72 Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary

Year ended 31 December 2013

During the year, the Group’s equity interest in Apex increased
from 88.2% to 88.7% upon the purchase of shares of Apex from
non-controlling shareholders at a total cash consideration of

HK$13,500,000.

Also, there was a deemed disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary,
Rosedale Beijing, held by Apex due to capital contribution from the
Investor of US$68,800,000. The equity interest in that subsidiary held
by Apex decreased from 100% to 20%. Rosedale Beijing ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Group and becomes an associate of the Group since
the Group is able to exercise significant influence. Details set out in note

37b.

Year ended 31 December 2012

During the year, the Group’s equity interest in Apex was increased
from 83.1% to 88.2% upon the purchase of shares of Apex from
non-controlling shareholders at a total cash consideration of

HK$62,000,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the conditions for the
disposal of More Star are satisfied including a resolution was passed
by the shareholders of the Company for the approval on the Disposal
Agreement at a special general meeting held on 5 March 2014. The
transaction has been completed on 14 March 2014. Details of the

transaction are set out in note 26.

45.

46.

ok o U 25 % B

— =+ HA=+—RHItFE

TENBLT (&
MEARZERERERZE D

A FE——FfH=1+—HI
FE

FER - AR 4 K (813,500,000 7T # 3F
PR AR 5 BB A Apex& (9 1% » AN EE B Apex
Z MR HE %5 188.2% 18 Z=88.7% ©

It 5N - R RNE & & F £ 68,800,0003 7T ¢
ApextREHEMF KB AR R
IARE 2 E DTS - ApexN BB A AR
Z IR R100% M E20% © b RIAE
TEAREEZHEAR MENRANEER
BReNEILRIHBTEEATE S bR
A AR E 2 B N 7] o FF BB
FE37b °

HE —E
FZF
FR - AR 4 R {B62,000,0008 7T #E IE
7 R i 58 BB A Apex P15 1% - A5 B 52 Apex
Z PR ZS H83.1% 1 E88.2% ©

——FFrZA=F—AL

ERHMEER

A 2 ERAE R - & More StarZ (EHE
KOER BEARRRER T —MFE=
RRASTZRREFIAE FRB—IER
BERIELNERZHE ZXHERT—N
FZRATHBTK R FHBEHRI T
26 °

7
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Financial Summary

Sk 285 1k 22

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE+-A=t-HILEE
—E2-= —E—-F —E——fF —T-TF —EThEF
FHT Fi Fi#T Fi FHT
Continuing operations BFEKEER
Turnover BEE 447,220 429,466 391,023 309,339 257,989
Profit (loss) before taxation BRERER (EE) 502,184 (148,112) (217,886) (290,872) (231,170)
Income tax (expense) credit et (FX)EE (59,086) (933) (1,445) 4,061 (1,778)
Profit (loss) for the year from BECEEBZATE
continuing operations A (&) 443,098 (149,045) (219,331) (286,811) (232,948)
Discontinued operations RIFREER
Loss for the year from RIESEEB 2 RER
discontinued operations &8 - - - 699,724 (114,241)
Profit (loss) for the year REZHEM (BE) 443,098 (149,045) (219,331) 412,913 (347,189
Profit (loss) for the year REZHERN (BE)
attributable to: =NZIPNe 2
Owners of the Company Vi/NCIEZEN 381,966 (143,188) (206,643) 468,446 (357,811)
Non-controlling interests R 61,132 (5,857) (12,688) (55,533) 10,622
443,098 (149,045) (219,331) 412,913 (347,189)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W+=A=+-8”
—E-=F —T-=F —T——fF —T-FF ZTTNF
F#x FHT FHT FHT FHT
Total assets BEBME 3,567,266 3,130,142 3,151,655 3,023,269 3,706,012
Total liabilities ARG 1,348,673 1,240,384 1,057,409 754,118 1,831,044
2,218,593 1,889,758 2,094,246 2,269,151 1,874,968
Equity attributable to AATEA A
Owners of the Company [EIEHE = 1,976,154 1,704,987 1,854,959 2,005,557 1,503,396
Non-controlling interests FEE R = 242,439 184,771 239,287 263,594 371,572
2,218,593 1,889,758 2,094,246 2,269,151 1,874,968
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HOTEL PROPERTIES

Company
AL

Address
3k

Particulars of Properties

S

Gross %
Area Interest

HER EEBEDL

Rosedale Hotel

Guangzhou Co., Ltd.

BEIMNIARBE B R A

Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel Co., Ltd.

BEENEREERR QA

Rosedale Hotel & Suites,
Guangzhou
No. 348
Jiangnanda Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC

&M 3B R I
BB T

BIRE
JL A K38 3485%

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel
No. 319 Zhongzhou
Zhong Road,

Xigong District,
Luoyang City,

Henan Province, the PRC

BB e KEREE

hETEE
BT
AL

R B&3195%

B JE Y3
Existing Site
Use Area
B AE 2R T AR
Hotel operation 10,838.88
sg.m.
AT TR 2E 7S 10,838.88
75k
Hotel operation 9,025.51
sg.m.
AT TR 2E 7S 9,025.51
75k

46,865.83 71.7%
sg.m.
46,865.83 71.7%
21,269.18 60.0%
sg.m.
21,269.18 60.0%
7K

R 42 IR AT PR A ] 175
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Particulars of Properties

S

Existing Site Gross %
Company Address Use Area Area Interest
| 4t AR b 42 T A HER BEEDL
Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited  Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 77.1%
No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. sg.m.
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
KRRES CBR)ARRR EEERESEE REBE R 5335.00  43,000.34 77.1%
& TR 7K
bl ]
LN
1E U4 K 9957
Fortress State International No. 86, Tai Kok Tsui Road, Hotel operation 845.40 10,300.46 100%
Limited Tai Kok Tsui, sg.m. sg.m.
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BERERARAA BENRE REBERD 845.40  10,300.46 100%
=1L TR IR
N F5 08 3B 865
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REW=R
Company Address Existing Use Lease Term
AT B+ B A& FHHE
The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Vacant Leasehold with a term expiring
Hotel & Suites Ltd. Changning District, on 15 October 2023
Shanghai, the PRC
HBEX (LB)ARAF RE AT =g HERHE HENR-_T_=F
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Rosedale

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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www.rhh.com.hk
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